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LEADING DEUELOPMENTS
INNOUATION AND TECHNOLOGY
BUILDING THE FUTURE

TOTAL BUSINESS SOLUTIONS



LEADING DEUELOPMENTS



CREATING NEW INNOUATIUE PRODUCTS, RESEARCH
AND KNOWLEDGE UIHICH CATERS FOR EUERY CUSTOMER'S NEEDS.
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INNOUATION AND TECHNOLOGS
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ADDING UALUE AND ENHANCING QUALITY THAT ADAPT TO
TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGE 1N ORDER TO ACHIEUE SERUICE EXCELLENCE.
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BUILDING THE FUTURE



SHARING WITH SOCIETY THROUGH DATA AND TECHNOLOGY
IN AIDING FUTURE BUSINESS PROFESSIONALS
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TOTAL BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
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BRINGING IN NEW BUSINESS UISION WITH COMPREHENSIUE SOLUTIONS
THAT MEET INTERNATIONAL STANDARDS
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Dear Shareholders

Business Online Public Company Limited enjoyed
another year of satisfactory performance in 2011.
Our total revenue for the year was 412.98 million
Baht, while our net profit after tax was 86.24
million Baht, representing a 26.39% and 19.07%
growth respectively when compared with the year
2010. Key factors driving such growth include the
continuous growth of BOL's core business, which is
the information services such as Corpus and DSS. In
addition, the revenue from special projects showed
steady increase last year compared to the year
before. Furthermore, there has been progress in the
development of BOL's new-generation services, for
instance, information analytics services to support risk
management and identifying business opportunities.
There were a rising number of clients, especially
in the financial sector, starting to use the services.

BOL continues to give keen emphasis to research
and development activities on its products and
services to keep pace with ever-changing technology
and our clients’ needs. Apart from our regularly
ongoing business, product and process development
activities, in 2011 BOL established iBOL Company
Limited, a 100% owned subsidiary, with a registered
capital of 5 million Baht. iBOL was set up to focus
on seeking and utilizing new technology available
to enhance the effective use of database to meet
the needs of the market.

BOL would like fo thank its customers, partners
and shareholders for their continual support. We
would also like to extend our appreciation to the
whole team of BOL's management and staff for
their creativity, hard-working aftitude and commitment.
They are the real driving forces behind the company’s
success in achieving the set goals.

(Mr. Jack Min Intanate)
Executive Chairman
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¢ Master of Science (Ag. Econ.), University of Wisconsin, USA

o 1By @1ATEgANansludin uninenduassudnans

o Wagning nendeilasiusaeiandns ade) Ju 35

o Uszmatiedng TniEvieszAtge gu 11 v nw.

o tlsznAtiaiing 1A59n19 Role of The Chairman Program (RCP) (12/2548)

« dsznatlaiing 1AsaNIs Director Accredited Program (DAP) (2547)

« Usznatiedng 1n3an1s Director Certification Program (DCP) §u 15/2546

o 1sznAtiaing 1919 Finance for Non-Finance Director (FN) (2546)

Uszaunistigiounds 5 U

« 2546-1aq1u Uszaunssunte UM I5wa eaulall 91fin wmnaw

» 2549-113917U N3TUNTT ANIZNITUNNTATINABLUAZTZLIUNA
NITNIWNNINDUNEUAZINN

« 2546-1aq1u Uszanunssunts Ui aile Uszfiude wezinalng 4

« 2545-aq1u nesuNITBaTIaUsIeIUNTTUNNTATINARL LUTEM Lok
1R (UML)
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Mr. Noravat Suwarn Age 71

Chairman of the Board

Shareholding Percentage as of 30 Dec 2011 (0.49%)

Duration of Directorship 9 Years (2003-Present)

Educations

* Master of Science (Ag. Econ.), University of Wisconsin, USA

BA (Econ) Thammasat University

Certificate National Defence College (Class 35)

Certificate Senior Executive Program (Class 11)

Certificate The Role of The Chairman Program (RCP) 12/2005 (IOD)

Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2004 (IOD)

Certificate Director Certification Program (DCP) 15/2003 (IOD)

Certificate Finance for Non-Finance Director (FN) 2003 (IOD)

5 YEARS WORK EXPERIENCE

e 2003-Present Chairman of the Board Business Online Public Company Limited

e 2006-Present Director Audit & Evaluation Committee Ministry of
Tourism and Sports

e 2003-Present Chairman of the Board Kunia Insurance (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

e 2002-Present Independent Director & Chairman of Audit Committee

IT City Public Company Limited

ursuia Duns dJAswA 01y 57 U

nssunisua:us:s1uNssUNISUSKHIS

FadounstioRu tu 30 s.A. 2554 (6.97%)
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« ya Inenenandgufingn AnRufnR a1sTuLasauneienIsinng
MINENAENMANT AN

o BygninAufa enmandTugin Anenmansaauialmed ANAAINTTU
wazinalulagnisinens uningdamaluladsTuing soys

o Bynn annilnenssudnandiioudin Fu Hsing Institute of Technology (1AL

« sznrtiening TAsens Director Accredited Program (DAP) (2547)

o tlagnatlaiing 1A99n19 Role of The Chairman Program (RCP) (12/2548)

Us=aunisaidoundl 5 U

+ 2546-11aq1Tu nasumsuAzIlszaTUNgIUNILINS LS A saulatl A @

» 2554-1faqifu dszaunssuns 13 lalua 41iin

« 2551-1laqtiu nssunis USEN wied Auaseiiuud 41in

+ 2549-1aq1Tu szaUNIIUNNT 13N A woud 1 Wezmalne) 41fim

« 2543-laqtfungsuns 15 deyainshnwieni 41in

+ 2539-il491fu nesunsuazilezeNITUNMILEYNG LT Tl 35 911in (vnany

« 2538-1aq1iu nssunis SN mafuauniia 41fin

» 2532-11991u nesumsuazilszaTUNITUNTLEMS 13 andlail 3R @)

+ 2530-1laqtiu nssuns USEN nquuaniud Sid@5y 41in

Mr. Jack Min Intanate Age 57

Director & Executive Chairman

Shareholding Percentage as of 30 Dec 2011 (6.97%)

Duration of Directorship 9 Years (2003-Present)

Educations

e PhD in Science (Honorary) Information Technology for Management,
Mahasarakam University

e Bachelor (Honorary) of Science, Engineering and Agricultural, Rajamangala
University of Technology Thanyaburi

e Bachelor of Architecture, Fu Hsing Institute of Technology (Taiwan)

« Certificate, Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2004 (IOD)

e Certificate, The Role of The Chairman Program (RCP) 12/2005 (IOD)

5 YEARS' WORK EXPERIENCE

* 2003-Present Director & Executive Chairman Business Online Public

Company Limited

¢ 2011-Present Chairman iBOL Co., Ltd.

 2008-Present Director ABIKS Development Co., Ltd.

e 2006-Present Chairman D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

¢ 2000-Present Director National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.

* 1996-Present Direcfor & Executive Chairman IT City Public Company Limited

* 1995-Present Director Core & Peak Co., Ltd.

¢ 1989-Present Director & Executive Chairman ARIP Public Company Limited

 1987-Present Director Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd.
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¢ Master of Business Administration, University of Scranton, USA

o Wy wdermaniiudin aiaanssiumiinede

o By 1dmsgaiatingn uninendeglaneassungany

« sznAtiening 1Asang Director Accredited Program (DAP) (2547)
Uszaumisaidiounas 5 U

o 2546-f491fu nssune USEN D3iua eaulat 41in @Wwm

o 2553-1991Tu nssuNTT LM wanflail 4nfin @Wvnaw)

« 2551-1aq1iu nssums LW telind Avasatiuud 41in

o 2545-1l991Tu ngIUNTT SN um 971

» 2543-1laq1fu n93UNTT USEW Lt Aaslaiedu anin

« 2542-{1aq1fu nssUNTT LUSHN AUOUARA 4111R

« 2542-f491fu nssuns WS eansledl arfin

« 2539-tlaqtiu femnensthedlvaznslu W nquuansud S5y 4in

Mr. Prayoon Rattanachaiyanont Age 48

Director

Shareholding Percentage as of 30 Dec 2011 (0.35%)

Duration of Directorship 9 Years (2003-Present)

Educations

¢ Master of Business Administration, University of Scranton, USA.
¢ Bachelor of Commerce, Chulalongkorn University

¢ Bachelor of Business Administration, Sukhothai Thammathirat University
* Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2004 (IOD)

5 YEARS’ WORK EXPERIENCE

¢ 2003-Present Director Business Online Public Company Limited
2010-Present Director ARIP Public Company Limited
2008-Present Director ABIKS Development Co., Ltd.
2002-Present Director Anet Co., Ltd.

2000-Present Director Anew Corporation Co., Ltd.
1999-Present Director Core & Peak Co., Ltd.

1999-Present Director ARIT Co., Ltd.

1996-Present Financial Controller Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd.

uayluws ofinasiy 01y 50 U
nssunisuazginnisnall
dadounisiioriu tu 30 s.A. 2554 (0.48%)

Fwsudi@unssuns 9 U (2546-0730u)
msAnw
o fusseansuiigameainlszgns ResAtieuruin
annruTuf airILLENTANERS
o Bygn wseganandiudin Washtouduiuass uninendavanisilng
o tlsznAtiating TAsanis Director Accredited Program (DAP) (2547)
o 1lsznAtiating Fostering a Board and Management Team (2548)
o Uszmatledng wingas EDP i:uﬁ 6
Uszaunisaigiounds 5 U
o 2546-1lqqiTu ﬂﬁmmma:é%msﬁﬂﬂ
v3un Ddwua asulal 47a @A)
o 2554-fa9iTu nssunns uFEm lalua 411
« 2549-1laqtiu nesums USEW A ueud U alszinalne) 41in

Ms. Chamaiporn Apikulvanich Age 50
Director & General Manager
Shareholding Percentage as of 30 Dec 2011 (0.48%)
Duration of Directorship 9 Years (2003-Present)
Educations
¢ Master of Applied Statistics (Computer Science, HONS.), NIDA
« Bachelor of Arts (Economics, 2 Class Hons.),

University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce
e Cerfificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2004 (IOD)
e Cerfificate Fostering a Board and Management Team 2005
* Certificate EDP#6
5 YEARS’ WORK EXPERIENCE
* 2003-Present Director & General Manager

Business Online Public Company Limited

e 2011-Present Director iBOL Co., Ltd.
¢ 2006-Present Director D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
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e Drexel University, Pennsylvania, USA (Double degree) i.e. Finance
and Economics

o tsznatiating Tasanie Director Accredited Program (DAP) (95/2555)

Uszaunisaigounal 5 U

+ 2554-1aq1iu nssuns WS Dwa eeulail 41in @maw)

* 2549-11aq1TU Vice President, D&B Asia Pacific Partnership

e 2544-2549 Vice President, D&B Asia Pacific, Data & Operations

Mr. Teoh Khiam Boon Age 45

Director

Shareholding Percentage as of 30 Dec 2011 (0.00%)

Duration of Directorship 5 Months (August 2011 - Present)

Educations

e Drexel University Pennsylvania, USA (Double degree) i.e. Finance
and Economics.

e Cerfificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 95/2012

5 YEARS' WORK EXPERIENCE

e 2011-Present Director Business Online Public Company Limited

e 2006-Present Vice President, D&B Asia Pacific Partnership

¢ 2001-2006 Vice President, D&B Asia Pacific, Data & Operations

UIE39dU 1HEI YoIWI 01y 45U

NnssunNIs

dadounistioRu tu 30 s.A. 2554 (0.00%)

Fwudid@unssuns 6 U (2549-0730u)

msAnw

e MBA, Oxford Brookes University Business School (U.K.)

e FCCA, Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountant (U.K.)

e FCPA, Fellow of The Institute of Certified Public Accountant of Singapore

e ASEP, Advanced Senior Executive Program, SASIN/Kellogg School of
Management of Northwestemn University (U.S.A.)

e |IA, The Institute of Intfernal Auditors (U.S.A.)

¢ FCPA, Fellow of Certified Pratising Accountants of Australia

o lsznAtiating TAsenis Director Accredited Program (57/2549)

Us:aunisaidoundl 5 U

« 2549-1tiu nasuns UFEN TFua eaulatl 41dn @

o 2554-11991TU N97UNNT UTN wansladl 9fn @)

« 2562-1991iU nasuMs LT 1aTa Aauumes 910

« 2551-1faq1iu nesums USEW teliad Avasatiuud 41in

« 2549-iq1iu nasuns 1UFEN 1aly Aedilawsdiu d1in

+ 2549-f491fu n9suNe WSEN AFNTL Wi szmalne) 9aiin

+ 2549-1aq1iu nssuntg UFEN 1llidA Aeutiiiadud d1in

« 2545-1491fu nesuNe TN Ladilaie iR @)

« 2544-i991iu NagUMT LFEN 1alENA 4niin

« 2543-1aq1iu nesuMs LSEM nquuaniud $1d5 91in

Mr. Wilson Teo Yong Peng Age 45

Director

Shareholding Percentage as of 30 Dec 2011 (0.00%)

Duration of Directorship 6 Years (2006-Present)

Educations

¢ MBA, Oxford Brookes University Business School (U.K.)

FCCA, Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountant (U.K.)
FCPA, Fellow of The Institute of Certified Public Accountant of Singapore
ASEP, Advanced Senior Executive Program, SASIN/Kellogg School of
Management of Northwestern University (U.S.A.)

lIA, The Institute of Infernal Auditors (U.S.A.)

FCPA, Fellow of Certified Pratising Accountants of Australia

Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 57/2006

5 YEARS’ WORK EXPERIENCE

e 2006-Present Director Business Online Public Company Limited

¢ 2011-Present Director ARIP Public Company Limited

¢ 2009-Present Director Asys Computer Co., Ltd.

¢ 2008-Present Director ABIKS Development Co., Ltd.

¢ 2006-Present Director Anew Corporations Co., Ltd.

* 2006-Present Director Dataone Asia (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

¢ 2006-Present Director Afolec Communications Co., Ltd.

¢ 2002-Present Director SVOA Public Company Limited

e 2001-Present Director Acert Co., Ltd.

¢ 2000-Present Director Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd.
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o B usvnsgenauningn unninenaeladuds
uupsiiieain anigaiing

o Bynn sugAmanitiudin uninendasssuenans

« nangmsnistlasiusaernndnsanaigsiunenau
endeilasiusvainnang (isa. 377)

o 1lsznAtlaing 1ATIN1S Director Accredited Program (DAP) (2553)

Uszaunisaigiounds 5 U

+ 2553-ffa91u nesunMIBasTziazilsTaIuNITUNITATIARL

13t Dfua aaulal A @miam)
o 2552-2553  N99UNNT UTHWM HN3u AR @i
+ 2548-{l391fu N9IUNT LM rauatlan 411in

Mr. Anant Tangtatswas Age 61
Independent Director & Chairman of Audit Committee
Shareholding Percentage as of 30 Dec 2011 (0.05%)
Duration of Directorship 2 Years (2010-Present)
Educations
¢ MBA (Finance), Columbia University, NYC, USA
¢ BA (Economics), Thammasat University
¢ National Defence College
(Joint Government-Private Sectors Program-Class 377)
e Cerfificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2010 (IOD)
5 YEARS’ WORK EXPERIENCE
¢ 2010-Present Independent Director & Chairman of Audit Committee
Business Online Public Company Limited
e 2009-2010
¢ 2005-Present Director Green Spot Co., Ltd.

Director Crown Seal Public Company Limited

uEDLITNN Buwesuwu 91y 45U
NSSUNISDASELATNSSUNISOSIAFOU
dadounistioRu tu 30 s.A. 2554 (0.60%)
FusudRdunssunis 9 U (2546 - Jaadu)
msAnw
o Ry wEmesgsiaumiugn uninendedadudy
« 3N TUAManiumIudin Columbia University
« By dAfansTudin uninendusssudans
¢ Graduate Diploma Business Law UMINENALEITUANARS
o tszmatieiing 1A39n1s  Director Certification Program (DCP)
Us:aunisnidiounds 5 U
o 2546-11991TU N9IUNNTBATIUAZNITUNITATINADL

Uit Dfwa eaulal 91fn wmaw)

o fhaiiu Partner 181 Sustuauiaiond Wsamndlnendnin
o 2549-2550  sasvihmihanizgLFmedung g

UTEN N3 pasilaisdy 4da (UL
e 2541-2549  Pariner 15 1 uaun wra aszmnalne) 91im

Ms. Manida Zinmerman Age 45

Independent Director & Audit Committee
Shareholding Percentage as of 30 Dec 2011 (0.60%)
Duration of Directorship 9 Years (2003-Present)

Educations

* MBA Assumption University

e LL.M., Columbia University

¢ LLB., Thammasat University

¢ Graduate Diploma Business Law, Thammasat University
¢ Certificate the Director Certification Program (DCP)

5 YEARS’ WORK EXPERIENCE

e 2003-Present Independent Director & Audit Committee

Business Online Public Company Limited

¢ Present Partner Hunton & Williams (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
e 2006-2007  Associate General Counsel

True Corporation Public Company Limited
e 1998-2006  Partner White & Case (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
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dndounistioRu tu 30 s.A. 2554 (0.10%)
Fuoudidunssunis 4 U (2551-0%30u)
nsAnu
o USyyn AnenAansudn (ANnAAans) unianandaidaclng
+ vAnNgReLTMIEALgY anuinenisratAUY (Mangms em.) i;uﬁ 4
o sznAtleninglasanng Director Accredited Program (DAP) (2552)
Uszaunmistigiounds 5 U
o flaqifu neesuNNIBATIUAZNITUNITATINADY
U T%ua aaulad 41 @wia)
o fhaifu seufinnsiug aremalulad suatengann 1R @
o 2543-2554 Habefinnising anewalulat
AUNANINTUNN 1A (UML)
e 2544-2549 Program Manager-Core Banking System Project
FUIANINTUNW AR (W)

Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya Age 58
Independent Director & Audit Committee
Shareholding Percentage as of 30 Dec 2011 (0.10%)
Duration of Directorship 4 Years (2008-present)
Educations
e Bachelor of Science, Chiangmai University
¢ Certificate Senior Executive Program (Capital Market Academy) Class 4
¢ Certifcate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2009 (IOD)
5 YEARS' WORK EXPERIENCE
e Present  Independent Director & Audit Committee
Business Online Public Company Limited
e Present  Senior Executive Vice President Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
e 2000-2011 Executive Vice President, Technology Division
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
e 2001-2006 Program Manager-Core Banking System Project
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
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dadounistionu tu 30 s.A. 2554 (6.97%)

FuoutRDudusis 9 U (2546 - Taydu)

msAnwl 3 ‘

« Uy Inenanandqufiingn InRudng annsTunansaunAiien1sdnnIs
UINENdEAAIT AN

o By NARNAA InendaRsTuzn AnenAEnTADLRILAGT) AMLIAINGIL
wazmalulagnisinens uninatdamalulatisauina Sous

o o annilnenssuANansTIgA Fu Hsing Institute of Technology (laini)

« szmaileiing 1Asan1s Director Accredited Program (DAP) (2547)

o lsznAtiating 1n99n19 Role of The Chairman Program (RCP) (12/2548)

Uszaunisaidounds 5 U

+ 2546-11991Tu nesunsuAzIszaUNTTINMILIMNT 151 Lidnia aeulatl 9in @

+ 2554-fla9ifulszaunssunts vdsm lalua 91fia

+ 2551-1faqtiunssuns USEn eilind Aaaethuud 91in

* 2549-flaqiTu szanunssung 155 7 wous O Wszinelney s7im

+ 2543-ilaqtiunssuns 1S deyainsinuiennd dadn

+ 2539-l491fu nesunsuazszEUNITUNTLEYT LN Tafl 3R 97im v

« 2538-1aqtil nssuns USEN pefuaudiia 41in

* 2532-laq1Tu N99UMNTUAZLI92aUNTIUNTLEVNS L5 teenFlal aniim @wvnany

+ 2530-1faqtiu nssunts USEN nquuaniud S5y 41in

Mr. Jack, Min Intanate Age 57

Director & Executive Chairman

Shareholding Percentage as of 30 Dec 2011 (6.97%)

Duration of Executive 9 Years (2003-Present)

Educations

e PhD in Science (Honorary) Information Technology for Management,
Mahasarakam' University

¢ Bachelor (Honorary) of Science, Engineering and Agricultural, Rajamangala
University of Technology Thanyaburi

¢ Bachelor of Architecture, Fu Hsing Institute of Technology (Taiwan)

e Cerfificate, Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2004 (IOD)

e Certificate, The Role of The Chairman Program (RCP) 12/2005 (IOD)

5 YEARS’ WORK EXPERIENCE

¢ 2003-Present Director & Executive Chairman Business Online Public

Company Limited

¢ 2011-Present Chairman iBOL Co., Ltd.

¢ 2008-Present Director ABIKS Development Co., Ltd.

¢ 2006-Present Chairman D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

¢ 2000-Present Director National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.

¢ 1996-Present Director & Executive Chairman [T City Public Company Limited

¢ 1995-Present Director Core & Peck Co., Ltd.

¢ 1989-Present Director & Executive Chairman ARIP Public Company Limited

¢ 1987-Present Director Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd.

uanyluws annasiy 01y 50 U
nssumiswazgianisnall
dadounistioRu tu 30 s.A. 2554 (0.48%)
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msAnwyY
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o tlsznrtiaiing Fostering a Board and Management Team (2548)
« dsznatlening wingns EDP iuﬁ 6
Uszaumisaidiounds 5 U
o 2546-1laq1Tu n‘immma:éﬁmmsﬁﬂﬂ
1350 DFua aaulal A @)
« 2554-aqiTu nesunis W3 lelua 91din
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Ms. Chamaiporn Apikulvanich Age 50
Director & General Manager
Shareholding Percentage as of 30 Dec 2011 (0.48%)
Duration of Executive 9 Years (2003-Present)
Educations
* Master of Applied Statistics (Computer Science, Hons.), NIDA
« Bachelor of Arfs (Economics, 2™ Class Hons.),

University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce
e Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2004 (IOD)
* Certificate Fostering a Board and Management Team 2005
e Certificate EDP#6
5 YEARS' WORK EXPERIENCE
e 2003-Present Director & General Manager

Business Online Public Company Limited

e 2011-Present Director iBOL Co., Ltd.
¢ 2006-Present Director D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
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o sznAtiatinglasinng Company Secretary Program
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Mr. Chaiyaporn Kiatnuntavimon Age 40

Deputy General Manager-Sales, Marketing & Business Development,
Company Secretary

Shareholding Percentage as of 30 Dec 2011 (0.44%)

Duration of Executive 9 Years (2003-Present)

Educations

e Master of Business Administration University of South Australia

e Bachelor of Science, Major in Chemical Industry,

King Mongkut Institute of Technology Ladkrabang

¢ Certificate the Company Secretary Program
5 YEARS’ WORK EXPERIENCE

¢ 2003-Present Deputy General Manager-Sales, Marketing & Business

Development Business Online Public Company Limited

e 2011-Present Director iBOL Co., Ltd.
e 2006-Present Director D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
¢ 2000-Present Director MP Venture Co., Ltd.

uaESnU qnssIA o1y 53 U

sosgiansnald dhedpufinisuasszuu

dadounistioRu tu 30 s.A. 2554 (0.17%)
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nsfinyl

o By WaulEmsmansumniudianatadszgns
anuriugaimuLTnsAans
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Ms. Surat Rithirong Age 53

Deputy General Manager-Operation & System
Shareholding Percentage as of 30 Dec 2011 (0.17%)

Duration of Executive 9 Years (2003-Present)

Educations

¢ Master of Applied Statistics (Computer Science), NIDA

¢ Bachelor of Statistics, Silpakorn University

5 YEARS' WORK EXPERIENCE

* 2003-Present Deputy General Manager-Operation & System

Business Online Public Company Limited
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Ms. Kanyapan Buranarom Age 38

Deputy General Manager-Finance & Accounting

Shareholding Percentage as of 30 Dec 2011 (0.16%)

Duration of Executive 9 Years (2003-Present)

Educations

e Master of Business Administration, Major in Management,
Srinakarin Tharavirot University

¢ Bachelor of Accounting, Bangkok University

¢ Bachelor of Business Administration, Sukhothai Thammathirat University

5 YEARS’ WORK EXPERIENCE

e 2003-Present Deputy General Manager-Finance & Accounting

Business Online Public Company Limited
¢ 2006-Present Director D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

e Present Certified Public Accountant (Thailand)
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
goyanymsiulayasy
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2554 2553 2552 2554 2553 2552

Auningsay 389,761 327,826 302226 389571 327.934 302,404
wilAusu 136932 93563 80926 136619 93,533 80896
daesfiavu 252,829 234263 221,300 252952 234400 221508
278l Rgul 412985 326762 269,064 412961 326758 269,060
918 1ARNNNTIEUATLENNT 401,668 316452 258,898 401,668 316452 258,898
flsdusiu 188,331 163,728 147,720 188331 163,728 147,720
nlsangnaunii 116819 98975 87416 116804 98905 87,404
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

For the year ended December 31, Consolidated " The Company Only
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Total Assefs 389,761 327,826 302,226 389571 327934 302,404
Total Liabilities 136,932 93,563 80,926 136,619 93,533 80,896
Total Equity 252,829 234263 221,300 252952 234,400 221,508
Total Revenues 412,985 326,762 269,064 412961 326,758 269,060
Revenue from sales and services 401,668 316452 258,898 401,668 316452 258,898
Gross Profit 188,331 163,728 147,720 188,331 163,728 147,720
Profit before tax 116,819 98,975 87.416 116,804 98,905 87,404
Net Profit 86,237 72,427 70,413 86,222 72,357 70,401

Financial Ratio

Gross Profit Margin (%) 46.89 51.74 57.06 46.89 51.74 57.06
Net Profit Margin (%) 20.88 22.17 26.16 20.88 22.14 26.17
Return on Total Assets (%) 22.13 22.09 23.30 22.13 22.06 23.28
Refturn on Equity (%) 34.11 30.92 31.82 34.09 30.87 31.78
Current Ratio (fimes) 2.10 2.30 2.46 2.09 229 2.45
Debt to Equity Ratio (times) 0.54 0.40 0.37 0.54 0.40 0.37

Comparison of Information per share (Baht)

@

Basic Earning per share 0.11 0.09 0.09 0.1 0.09 0.09
Number of shares-Issued and paid-up (share : Million) ~ 785.09 77355  765.35 785.09 773.55 765.35

@

Par Value per share (Baht) 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Book Value per share (Baht) 0.32 0.30 0.29 0.32 0.30 0.29
Dividend payment (Million Baht) 69.65 65.10 75.79 69.65 65.10 75.79
“ Dividend per share (Baht) 0.04 0.09 0.09 0.04 0.09 0.09

m

On 22 March 2006, a subsidiary of BOL, D&B (Thailand) Company Limited, has registered its incorporation
with the Ministry of Commerce and BOL ‘s shareholding in such company is 99.99 percent.

On 10 March 2011, a subsidiary of BOL, iBOL Company Limited, has registered its incorporation
with the Ministry of Commerce and BOL ‘s shareholding in such company is 99.99 percent.

@ Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net income for the year by the weighted average
number of outstanding ordinary shares during the year.

[©)

The Company’s par value has been changed from 1.00 Baht per share to 0.10 Baht each during 2008.
“In 2011, the Company’s interim dividend payment at the rafe of Baht 0.04 per share (par value of 0.10 Baht)
was approved based on its operating results for the first  6-month period of 2011 (excl. annual dividend

payment subject to Annual General Meeting 2012).
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REVENUE COMPARISONS 2011
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FINANCIAL COMPARISON FOR THE YEAR 2007 - 2011
(FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE COMPANY ONLY)
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TOTAL REVENUES
FOR THE YEAR

2011

® Information Services 247,201 : 60%
® Consulting 3,568 : 1%
Outsourcing 12,614 : 3%
® Other Services 139,100 : 34%
® Other Income (Interest & Dividend) 10,478 : 2%

O\

TOTAL REVENUES
FOR THE YEAR

wu 2010

® Information Services 236,515 : 72%
® Consulting 25,127 : 8%
Outsourcing 11,625 : 4%
® Other Services 45,407 : 14%
® Other Income (Interest & Dividend) 8,084 : 2%

23
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Company’s name : Business Online Public Company Limited [BOL]
Address: 900/8-10 SVOA Tower 11, 12, 14 Fl., Rama lll Rd., Bangpongpang, Yannawa, Bangkok 10120
Type of Business:

Business Online Public Company Limited provides both online and offline business information services that
include information of registered companies in Thailand, business news, and business information. Furthermore,
BOL also provides comprehensive solutions such as consulting service including design and develop information

management system, knowledge management system, database system, software, application, financial analysis,

risk analysis, market opportunity analysis and database management.

Company Registered Number 0107546000407
Tel. 1 +66 2657 3999
Fax. o +66 2657 3900-1

www.BOL.co.th
78,750,000 Baht
78,509,470 Baht
0.10 Baht

Homepage
Registered capital
Paid-up capital

Par value

Type and amount of Outstanding Shares Ordinary shares : 785,094,700 Ordinary shares

Subsidiary name : D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Address : 900/8-10 SVOA Tower Rama Il Rd.,
Bangpongpang, Yannawa, Bangkok 10120

Type of Business : International credit reporting
& Database activities
Tel. 1 +66 2657 3939
Fax. 1 +66 2657 3901
Registered capital  : 1,000,000 Baht
Paid-up capital : 1,000,000 Baht
Par value : 10 Baht
Type and amount of Outstanding Shares Ordinary shares:

100,000 Ordinary shares

Joint Venture name : Abiks Development Co., Ltd.

Address : 131 Ratburana Rd, Ratcburana, Bangkok 10140
Type of Business . Incorporated and domiciled in Thailand to
principally engage in real estate development business including
investment in land, office building for rental and to render property
management services to shareholders and other customers.

: 150,000,000 Baht

: 150,000,000 Baht

: 10 Baht

Type and amount of Outstanding Shares Ordinary shares:

15,000,000 Ordinary shares

Registered capital
Paid-up capital
Par value

Other Relevant Information

Share Registrar : Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.
62 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building
Ratchadapisek Rd, Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110

Tel. @ +66 2229 2888, +66 2596 9000

Fax. : +66 2832 4994-6

Subsidiary name : iBOL Co., Ltd.

(Has received investment support by Board of Investment (BOI)
under category 5.8 software, Card number 2282(7)/2554 and
received certificate from SEI (Software Engineering Institute)
passed evaluation CMMI-Dev V.1.3 Level 3)

Address : 25 Charoen Nakorn 14., Khlongtonsai, Khlongsan, Bangkok
10600

Type of Business : Developing an integrated computer system
and providing data services to businesses (License or Sublicense)
through various types of software; Software as a Service (Saas) or
Soffware on Demand.

: 5,000,000 Baht

: 5,000,000 Baht

: 10 Baht

Type and amount of Outstanding Shares Ordinary shares:

500,000 Ordinary shares

Registered capital
Paid-up capital
Par value

Investor Relations : ir@bol.co.th
o Mr. Chaiyapom Kiatnuntavimon
Company Secretary/Deputy General Manager-Sales,
Marketing & Business Development
e Ms. Kanyapan Buranarom
Deputy General Manager-Financial & Accounting
e Ms. Srisunun Anuchornphan
Assistant Company Secretary

Auditor : Ms. Siriwan Suratepin

C.P.A.(Thailand) Registration No. 4604

Emst & Young Office : 193/136-137, 33 Floor, Lake Ratchada
Office Complex Ratchadapisek Rd, Bangkok 10110 Thailand
Tel. @ +66 2264 0777

Fax. : +66 2264 0789-90
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

2.500 1n

Corporate Social Responsibility During the past year, BOL continues the commitment

to serve the society whether directly or indirectly. Through our participation, we are

able to see that business and society can exist alongside each other and we are proud

to be a part of this. Our activities include the followings:

® 'Card for You' project of The Befter Thailand
Foundation. This is our 9" year of support for this
program which aims to support the education and
increase living standards among youth through
art, which also helps the underprivileged and
handicapped children to communicate with adults.
For 2011, the activity is under the theme 'l love The
King’ from which the work of the award winner is

used in 2012 new year card.

* Supporting leading universities to develop the use
and analysis of business information among faculties,
students and staffs which would help with business
research. In 2011, BOL has signed a memorandum
of understanding with  Huachiew Chalermprakiet

University.

* In collaboration with The Better Thailand Foundation,
BOL has

Huachiew  Chalermprakiet

donated  computer  equipments  to
University which were
received by Dr. Prajak Poomvises, President of

Huachiew Chalermprakiet University.
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* In colloboration with The Better Thailond Foundation,

BOL has donated funds and teaching equipment to
National Children Health Institute, Children Hospital

* In commemoration of the 91" Anniversary of the
Ministry of Commerce, the company has donated
funds for children of the civil servants working for the

ministry, Blue Flag charity, and Wissukam Charity

* Donated money 1o the flood relief fund “§IWAIINel
ﬂiﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁ’]ﬁ’m’ with the Ministry of Commerce and
Office of the Prime Minister as well as participating in
flood relief activities organized by the Stock Exchange
of Thailand

®* The company made donations to Petchburi
Panyanakul School which is a school for handicapped
children with the objectives of giving equal
opportunities to handicapped children to developing
learning abilities while the skills taught are aimed
to help these children to live and work with others. In
addition, the school promotes transparency in its
management and administration; and the general
public is encouraged to take part in the school’s

development.
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BUSINESS OBJECTIVES

BOL is determined to be the leading provider
of information that has been thoroughly analysed |
and validated to improve customers’ decision-making
process. BOL contfinuously develops and updates its
existing databases. The company never ceases to
search for valuable information from additional
sources while improving our computer systems so that
we could deliver continuous service. Through a
proprietary process, the company has added value
to the database by analysing and displaying them
in a form of score and indicators for use in reducing
business risks and enhancing more opportunities. I
addition, BOL has aimed to expand its products and

services to international markets.

The company’s main target group is corporate group, which can be divided into 3 main groups as follows:
1) Financial Institutions
2) Private Businesses and Industries
3) Public Organizations

Customers mostly use our services o support their corporate decisions and as a tool to evaluate as well as
manage risks associated with business transactions. BOL's services also help customers to better manage their

market opportunities and enhance revenue performance.

Moreover, the company has developed products that perform complex data analysis to help small businesses
make fimely, standardized, accurate decisions derived from statistical and mathematical methods fo deliver a

score which is easy to understand and useful for those businesses to effectively manage their risks.

Meanwhile, the company has collaborated with leading infemnational companies in the area of information

analytics to bring further knowledge and technology to develop new products and services for the future.
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NATURE OF BUSINESS

Business Online Company Limited was founded on 26 April 1995 with registered capital of 10 milion Baht.
On 1 December 2003, the company converted its status to a public company and was renamed as Business
Online Public Company Limited with registered capital of 75 million Baht. The company increased its registered
capital to 78.75 million Baht on 18 April 2007, and on 7 December 2011, increased its paid-up capital to
78,509,470 Baht.

Our business activities are to provide information that has been analysed and validated, as well as related
news, fo improve customers’ decision making process. The information is compiled from many sources such
as the Department of Business Development, Ministry of Commerce. An agreement was made between the
Department of Business Development and BOL to allow access to basic information, including company status,
Board of Directors, and financial performance of more than 1,000,000 registered companies in Thailand. The
company also gathers other information such as related news from various industries through leading newspapers
and other respectable business news sources. In addition, the company stores and analyses debtors payment
information from existing customers who are participating in this program. The information received is thoroughly
checked, evaluated, analysed and stored in our online system that can be accessed through the company’s
website: http://www.BOL.co.th

The company’s joint venture with Dun & Bradstreet International (D&B) has increased BOL's capabilities;
not only have we gained knowledge in data management and analysis from a world’s leading company but
this has enabled the company to extend our service to intemnational markets via D&B’s network. From this, we
had launched a service that offers information on overseas companies for our local customers as a decision
tool which is beneficial in strengthening the country’s credit risk management and promoting transparency of
business fransactions. On 22 March 2006, BOL established a wholly owned subsidiary, D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
(Company Registration Number: 0105549038501) with a registered capital of 1 million Baht.

With information of more than 1,000,000 registered companies in Thaillond and more than 200 million
registered companies in 214 countries around the globe and expertise in developing Database Management
Systems, Risk Management, in conjunction with information technology know-how that make the company
to become one of the leading companies in providing fully-integrated information services ranging from
basic information such as basic information and company operation results which include: news services,
information analysis and validation. These can be used as effective fools that are effective and accurate
while reducing risks associated with investments and building more confidence and business opportunities.

The company has been selected as the data processing center for credit information submitted by
financial institutions which are members of National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd. (NCB).

In 2004, BOL introduced a comprehensive Financial Analysis System fo the market. This system enhanced
the efficiency in analyzing financial information and assisted managers to confidently devise strategies.

BOL began providing in-depth data analysis to improve its capability in business risks and opportunity analysis.
Since 2005, the company has developed a new generation of product that specifically caters for financial

institutions which is called Decision Support System (*DSS”). DSS enables the integration of BOL's and customers’
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databases to help customers better organize their databases to capture market opportunities and improve their

risk management.

At the end of 2007, BOL launched a new product called “Corpus”. Corpus is a new concept of information
service that integrates information on companies’ profile, shareholder information, director details and financial
statements. Users could easily access the information of over 1,000,000 companies fo analyse threats and
opportunities of any given company. Corpus was designed to answer the needs for information which may vary

from industry to industry or from one job function to another.

In 2010, the company has finished developing a risk forecasting tools that indicates an organization’s probability
in running into financial crisis and displays the result in a form of a score or Financial Stress Score (FS Score) that
achieves intemnational standards. The tool is a result of collaboration between BOL and the analyst team of D&B
in the United States. It is expected that the tool will help customers to understand the financial standings of their

business partners while diversifying their risks through better risk management strategies.

On 10 March 2011, BOL established a wholly owned subsidiary, iBOL Co., Ltd. (Company Registration Number:
0105554035077) with a registered capital of 5 million Baht.

Type of Services
BOL's services are divided info 3 main groups as follow:
1) Information Services

1.1) Basic Information

1.2) Decision Support Information

1.3) Analytic Information

2) Risk Management Services
2.1) Risk Management Solution

2.2) Risk Management Consultancy

3) Other Services
3.1) Special Project
3.2) Debtline

1. Information Services

Information service is BOL's main business, contributing over 70% of the total revenue and continues to
grow. In today’s business world, organizations are required to adapt themselves to rapid changes. Information
for decision making has played a significant role for management to accommodate and respond to competitive
situation. BOL is continuously developing its services to serve different target groups which have different level of
needs. The company emphasizes on adding value and bringing new perspective in managing risks and

opportunities. Our information service is delivered in the following cafegories:



ANNUAL REPORT 2011

swnuUs=U 2554

1.1 Basic Information Service
This covers both domestic and infernational company information through online and offline channels. The service
is provided to private businesses and organizations, as well as governmental agencies by gathering business
information from various sources thus giving different levels of users comprehensive and in-depth information
which is offered in many forms such as:
* Web-based application that has the following functions:
- Access fo updated, multi-dimensional information gathered from various sources
- In-depth financial analysis that helps users to easily understand complex numbers
- Alert changes to target companies that may have effects on the users” organizations
- Finding new customers according fo user-defined criteria which helps with devising organisational strategies
- Advanced search that enhances marketing effectiveness
e Reports
o Customised database - users can choose data items from our database in compiling reports tailored
to their specifications
1.2 Decision Support Information
This is provided as a Decision Support System that suits large organizations such as financial institutions where
overview of business information is essential to their operations. This also includes applications, systems and
information that are regularly updated.
1.3 Analytic Information
This is provided in forms of scores and ratings by compiling business and financial information of over
260,000 companies in our database. This is then analysed by using statistical methods before a score is
given. Users then use this score to predict the probability of a company facing a financial crisis which leads
to bankruptey, receivership, foreclosure or rehabilitation so that they understand their customer’s business,

diversify their risks, and effectively employing suitable risk management strategies for their portfolio.

2. Risk Management Services
2.1 Risk Management Solutions
Through cooperation with a leading international company, we are able to provide risk management
tools to financial institutions such as financial analysis system, business rule engine.
2.2 Risk Management Consultancy
We also serve as risk management consultants by bringing our experience and expertise on data analysis

to serve our customers through consulfing sessions and seminars.

3. Other Services
3.1 Special Project
Special project is one that the company provides by using our expertise in data management and auditing,
and IT infrastructure development that satisfy our customers’ unique requirements.
3.2 Debtline
The company provides debt collection service to enhance financial and liquidity management to customers.

This helps them to reduce bad debts while maintaining good relationships with their trading partners.
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Milestones of BOL

o 1995
o 1996

o 1998

e 2004

e 2006

e 2008
e 2008

e 2008

e 2009

e 2011

e 2011

Established Business Online Co., Ltd. (BOL).

Signed a memorandum of understanding (MOU) with the Department of Business Development, Ministry
of Commerce to provide online information of registered companies in Thailand.

Entered into a joint venture with Dun and Bradstreet (D&B), a world leading information provider.
Listed on The “"Market for Alterative Investment (mai)” The Stock Exchange of Thailand.
Established D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd. as a fully-owned subsidiary with the registered capital of
1 milion Baoht.

“Bai Pho Business Award” by Sasin 2008 Oufstanding in “Value Creation” and “Customer Focus”.
200 Best Under A Bilion” Award from Forbes Asia Magazine (September 2008 issue) conducted
a survey on listed companies in Asia Pacific region consisting of 24,155 companies. The purpose of this
award was to give “200 Best Under A Bilion” Award fo listed companies which had revenues of
less than a billion US Dollars and had outstanding performances.

Inverted 20% of 150 milion Baht registered capital with other partner to establish ABIKS Development
Co., Lid.

BOL was certified on the Information Security Management System (ISMS) in accordance with
standards of ISO/IEC 27001:2005 from Bureau Veritas Certification (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (BVAD.
Which is the best standard in the Information Securerity Management System. This is one of the
achievements which demonstrate our commitment to professionally serve our customers with highest
quality and efficiency.

D&B Worldwide Network Awards 2011 “Excellence in Information Quality” Award from D&B
International.

Established iBOL Co., Ltd. as a fully-owned subsidiary with the registered capital of 5 milion Baht.
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RISK FACTORS

Risk factors are considered as factors which may have adverse effects on the company’s operation and
performance. The factors not being mentioned are considered to be insignificant or beyond the company’s

anticipation.

1. Risks related to the security of BOL's database

Since the company is in the business of providing information, database are therefore the most crucial assets
of the company. Any loss of information or illegal break-in (hacking) to steal or destroy the database or any
network problem, will have detrimental impact on the company’s operations and services.

Risk Mitigation

The company has therefore implemented a set of policies and procedures to protect database and fo
ensure network security. The company also performs backing up all files at the production site and back-up
facility on a daily basis. Both facilities are equipped with high levels of security. The company appoints a list
of personnel who have access the database according to their authorization. The company also implements
a number of physical security systems such as access card to allow only authorized personnel to access to the
specific area, the installation of close-circuit television, and fingerprint scans fo record personnel who access fo
the data center.

Moreover BOL's network system, hardware and software are maintained and updated to ensure that they
function property at all times. Data Center staff are dedicated to monitor the status of the system. The company
implemented firewall, an infemational standard network security system to prevent system infrusion and the
company has never experienced a security breach with its database.

In the year 2008, BOL implemented a system procedure to comply with 1SO27001:2005 (Information Security
Management System). We have been certified with this international standard by Bureau Veritas Certification
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. in June 2009.

2. Risks on for Information Sources

Nowadays, the major sources of information supported the company’s services are supplied by two
govemnmental organizations which are: Department of Business Development, Ministry of Commerce; based on
information received from these organizations, BOL develops, analyses, and adds value so as to provide
relevant information services to customers. However, there are some risks associated to these information sources,
such as quality of information and the continuity of the support from the agencies.
Risk Mitigation

The company is working closely with the organization by checking and corecting data errors which improve
the quality of their information. BOL also searches for other respectable sources i.e. by gathering data from
inferviews, researches and questionnaires, etc. BOL also develops these information by tuming them into a more
in-depth analysis.



NATURE OF BUSINESS-
RISK FACTORS

page 93 - 98

3. Competition risk

In the current information age, an information service available on the internet is expanding in an
unprecedented speed. There is always a possibility for new entrants to the market.
Risk Mitigation

The company always emphasizes on value perceived by customers. With 16 years experience in a business that
provides business information, the company continuous researchs and develops its database. In the meantime,
the company also concentrates on human resource development by having staff exposed to new technology
trend from joining local and international events. The incremental knowledge is used fo enhance the company’s
strategies to create value to the service that best fit to user’s requirements. Moreover, we have received
support from our business alliances who mostly are global leaders in the business information industry through

constant collaborations in order to improve our company’s business in the future.

4. Risks from major shareholders pursuing their own interests

BOL's major shareholders are Mr. Min Intanate and Keppel Communications Pte. Ltd., with a combined
53.11 percent of BOL total paid-up capital (including ARG, in which Mr. Min Intanate and Keppel Group are
major shareholders). The major shareholders are able to control resolutions of shareholders’ meetings regarding
issues which require at least 50% of the total number of shareholders who aftend the meeting and have the
right to vote.
Risk Mitigation

The company has appointed independent directors which make up 33.33% of the Board of Directors to
promote transparency. Furthermore, the company has also allowed common stock holders to suggest the names

of directors and set the agenda in the annual general meeting.

5. The company depends on its management and senior employees. Unable to retain then could
adversely affect the company’s performance.

Most of management and senior employees have been with the company for long period. Their skill and
experiences are very specialized and critical to the company success. If the company is unable to retain them
and has no proper succession plan, it may create negative impact on businesses and financial performance.
Risk Mitigation

The company regards employee retention as its priority. One of the significant factors for company’s
sustainable success is maintaining skilled and experienced personnel in management, sales, marketing and
production. Furthermore, BOL consistently trains its human resources to assure that they could provide effective
product development and selling. ESOP for senior employees’ scheme is used to encourage them to work with

the company in long-term and binding their interest to company’s performance.
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SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE

Top Ten major shareholders as of 30 December 2011 include :

No. Shareholder No. of shares % of shareholding
1 Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd. 167,508,000 21.34
2 Keppel Communications Pte., Ltd. 164,224,000 20.92
3 Mr. Wissanu Sakulphichetrat 75,250,000 9.58
4 Dun & Bradstreet International., Ltd. 71,250,000 9.08
5 Mr. Min Intanate 54,730,000 6.97
6 Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited 32,845,000 4.18
7 Pan Pacific Consultant Co., Ltd. 30,484,000 3.88
8 Mrs. Parinya Khancharoensuk 22,700,000 2.89
9 Mr. Sorasak Kurattanaphisan 14,600,000 1.86
10 Citibank Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd-Ubs Ag London
Branch-Nrbs Ipb Client Seg 12,929,400 1.65
11 Other Shareholders 138,574,300 17.65
Total 785,094,700 100.00

Dividend Policy
The company’s dividend policy is to pay dividend not less than 50 percent of consolidated net profit affer
tax. However, the payout ratio may be lower if the company plans to expand its operations. The dividend payment

shall not exceed the retained eamings in the company’s financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Board of Directors

Audit Committee

Executive Committee

Internal Audit

|

General Manager

Company Secretary
‘

Sales, Marketing

) D&B Operations Accounting
& Business

Development

Business & System & Finance

Board of Directors

1. Mr. Noravat Suwarn Chairman of the Board

2. Mr. Min Intanate Director

3. Mr. Prayoon Rattanachaiyanont Director

4. Ms. Chamaipomn  Apikulvanich Director

5. Mr. Teoh Khiam Boon Director

6. Mr. Wilson Teo Yong Peng Director

7. Mr. Anant Tangtatswas Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee
8. Ms. Manida Zinmerman Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee
9. Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee
Company Secretary

Mr. Chaiyapom  Kiatnuntavimon

The Authorised Directors
The authorised directors are of Mr. Noravat Suwarn, Mr. Min Intanate, Ms. Chamaiporn Apikulvanich, and

Mr. Teoh Khiam Boon. Any two signatures of the four directors with the company’s seal shall bind the company.
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DIRECTOR MEETING ATTENDANCE FOR THE YEAR 2011

Director Board Meeting Audit Committee Meeting

Attendant /Total Meeting Attendant /Total Meeting
Mr. Noravat Suwarn 4/4 =
Mr. Min Intanate 4/4 =
Mr. Prayoon Rattanachaiyanont 4/4 -
Ms. Chamaiporn Apikulvanich 4/4 =
Mr. David Justinus Emery* 1/3 =
Mr. Wilson Teo Yong Peng 3/4 =
Mr. Teoh Khioam Boon** 1/1 -
Mr. Anant Tangtatswas 4/4 4/4
Ms. Manida Zinmerman 1/4 0/4
Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya 3/4 4/4

* Mr. David Justinus Emery resigned from the director since 1 August 2011

** Mr. Teoh Khiam Boon take the position instead of Mr. David Justinus Emery on 9 August 2011

Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Directors shall honestly and prudently perform their duties in accordance with the laws of Thailand, the
objectives of the company as contained in the Articles of Association of the company, and minutes of shareholders’
meetings, all with the aim to protect the interests of the company. A summary of the duties are as follows:

1. The Board of Directors shall hold an annual general shareholders” meeting within four months after the last
day of each fiscal year.

2. The Board of Directors shall hold a meeting at least once every three months.

3. The Board of Directors shall prepare the balance sheet and income statement as at the last date of the fiscal
year for reporting to the shareholders in Annual General Meeting for their consideration and approval.

4. As deem appropriate, the Board of Directors may designate any director(s) or any person as their proxy to

act on behalf of the Board on specific issues for a period of time under the Board supervision. The Board
may change, amend or cancel the proxy whenever it deems appropriate.
The Board of Directors may assign their proxy fo the Executive Committee to perform certain activities. However,
the proxy shall limit the authorized person(s) not to make decision on any transaction that may have any
conflict of inferest with the company or its subsidiaries, except for the transactions which are already or under
guidelines approved by the Board.

5. The Board of Directors shall determine the company’s target, policy, business plan and budget and supervise
the management of the Executive Committee to ensure that they are in line with the company’s policy, with
an exception for the following matters which require the approval of shareholders: a capital increase, capital
reduction, debenture issuance, disposal or fransfer of the business or a significant part of there to other parties,
the purchase or transfer of other businesses, and an amendment of Memorandum of Association or Artficles
of Association.

The Board of Directors shall ensure the company complies with regulations of the SEC and SET, i.e. connected

transactions, the disposal or acquisition of assets, etfc.
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6. The Board of Directors shall determine the management structure, appoint of the Executive Committee, Chief
Executive Officer, and members of other Committees.

7. The Board of Directors shall monitor the company’s performance in comparison to the business plan and
budget.

8. Director(s) shall not engage in any business which is similar or in competition with the business of the company
or become a partner in an ordinary partnership or become a director of a private company or any other
company operating a business which is similar or in competition with the business of the company, unless he
or she nofifies the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting prior to the resolution of his or her appointment.

9. A director shall notify the company without delay when (1) he or she has a direct or indirect inferest in any
contract which is made by the company: and (2) when he or she holds shares or debentures of the company
or an dffiliated company, and shall indicate any increase or decrease in the number of the director’s total

number of shares.

Executive Committee

Mr. Min Intanate Executive Chairman

Ms. Chamaiporn Apikulvanich General Manager

Mr. Chaiyaporn  Kiatnuntavimon Deputy General Manager-Sales, Marketing & Business
Development

Ms. Surat Rithirong Deputy General Manager-Operations & System

Ms. Kanyapan  Buranarom Deputy General Manager-Financial & Accounting

Duties and Responsibilities of the Executive Committee

The duties of the Executive Committee are to manage the company according to strategies and policies
set by the Board including the determination of policy, business plan, budget, management structure and
overall management of the company. The Executive Committee is to report the plan to the Board for its
consideration and/or approval and also monitor the company’s performance in accordance with the policies.

The Executive Committee’s duties are summarized as following:

1. Prepare and propose annual budget to the Board of Directors. In urgent case, the Executive Committee shall
consider and approve any changes of annual budget and shall report to the Board in the next Board meeting.

2. Approve expenditures not exceeding 20 million Baht.

3. Approve major investment as contained in the annual budget that are assigned or approved by the Board
of Directors.

4. Provide advice fo management in respect of financial, marketing, human resource management, and others.
The Executive Committee has the authority fo make decisions relating to any normal business fransaction of
the company, which do not include approval of transactions which may cause a conflict of interest with the
company or its subsidiary (if any) according to the SET's regulations. The Executive Committee is required to
obtain approval from the Board or Shareholders for connected fransactions in accordance with the company’s
Articles of Association or relevant laws, except for normal business fransactions already covered by existing

guidelines approved by the Board.
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THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors of Business Online Public Company Limited approved the appointment of an Audit
Committee on 24 October 2003. The Audit Committee consists of Directors with qualifications specified by the
Securities and Exchange Act. The Audit Committee currently consists of three (3) Independent Directors, at least
one of whom shall possess qualifications in accounting and finance.

Mr. Anant Tangtatswas Chairman of Audit Committee/Independent Director/qualifications in

finance and accounting

Ms. Manida Zinmerman Audit Committee/Independent Director

Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya Audit Committee/Independent Director

Audit Committee’s secretary

Mr. Songpol Sangkajonkiat  Senior Infemal Audit Manager

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

1. To review the company’s financial reporting process to ensure that it is accurate and adequate;

2. To review the company’s intemnal control system and interal audit system to ensure that they are suitable and
efficient, to determine an internal audit unit’s independence, as well as to approve the appointment, transfer
and dismissal of the chief of intemal audit unit or any other unit in charge of an intemnal audit;

3. To review the company’s compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act, the Exchange'’s regulations, and the
laws relating to the company’s business;

4. To consider, select and nominate an independent person to be the company’s auditor, and to propose such
person’s remuneration, as well as to attend a non-management meeting with an auditor at least once a year;

5. To review the connected transactions, or the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests, to ensure that
they are in compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act, and are reasonable and for the highest benefit
of the company;

6. To prepare, and to disclose in the company’s annual report, an Audit Committee’s report which must be signed
by the Audit Committee’s Chairman and contain of at least the following information:
 An opinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the company’s financial report,

* An opinion on the adequacy of the company’s internal control system,

* An opinion on the compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act, the Exchange'’s regulations, or the laws
relating to the company’s business,

* An opinion on the suitability of an auditor,

 An opinion on the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests,

o The number of the Audit Committee meetings, and the aftendance of such meetings by each committee member,

* An opinion or overview comment received by the Audit Committee from its performance of duties in accordance
with the charter, and

o Other transactions which, according fo the Audit Committee’s opinion, should be known fo the shareholders and
general investors, subject fo the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned by the company’s Board of Directors.

7. To perform any other acts as assigned by the company’s Board of Directors, with the approval of the Audit
Commiftee. In the case that the Audit Committee’s duties are changed, the company shall report on a resolution to change
their duties, and shall prepare a list and scope of work of the Audit Committee according to such change in
the form as prescribed by the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET). Such list and scope of work must be submitted
to the SET within 3 (three) business days from the date on which the change is made in accordance with the

procedures under the SET's regulations relating to reporting via an electronic media.
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The definition of “Independent Director”
The company has defined the “Independent Director” in accordance with the requirement set by the SEC and

SET, as follows:

An Independent Director is a director who independently provides opinions to the Board of Directors and:

1.

Holds shares of no more than 1 percent of the company paid-up capital.

2. Does not take part in the management of the company, or its subsidiaries.
3.
4. 1s not a related person or close relative of any management member or majority shareholder of the company

Is independent from the management and shareholders who have the authority in the company.

or the authority person.

. Does not have any significant business relation with the company which may refrain from providing or

expressing his/her independent opinions.

. Is not an employee, staff member or advisor who receives a regular salary from the company during the 1

year period before becoming an independent director.

Selection of Directors
The company has not set up a nominating committee to nominate appropriate persons to  be elected as director(s)

of the company. The Board of Directors shall select a person according to the qualifications as stated in the

Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, Section 68. and propose fo the meetings of shareholders for approval.

Shareholder Voting Rights for the Selection of Directors
The Board of Directors shall be appointed by a shareholders in Annual General Meeting according to the following

procedures:

1.
2.

3.

Each shareholder shall have one vote per one share.

Each shareholder shall cast his/her vote for one or more candidates for Board membership but shall not divide
his/her voting rights amongst more than one candidates.

In a case where there is a tie amongst Board candidates, the Chairman of the meeting shall cast the deciding vote.
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Remuneration of Directors

Directors remuneration

Position Remuneration Remuneration
Year 2011 Year 2010
Mr. Noravat Suwarn Chairman of the Board 391705200  3,356,240.00
Mr. Prayoon Rattanachaiyanont Director 360,000.00 260,000.00
Mr. David Justinus Emery® Director 245,000.00 250,000.00
Mr. Teoh Khiam Boon® Director 100,000.00 -
Mr. Wilson Teo Yong Peng Director 115,000.00 20,000.00
Mr. Pravate Amonrsin®” Independent Director & = 451,000.00
Chairman of Audit Committee
Ms. Manida Zinmerman Independent Director & 585,000.00 485,000.00
Member of Audit Committee
Asst. Prof.Chonawat Srisa-am® Independent Director & - 460,000.00
Member of Audit Committee
Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya Independent Director & 595,000.00 500,000.00
Member of Audit Committee
Mr. Anant Tangtatswas® Independent Director & 1,002,000.00 372,500.00

Chairman of Audit Committee

Total 6,919,052.00 6,149,740.00

Remark : The meeting allowance amount 5,000 Baht per attendance
(1) Mr. Pravate Amonsin resigned from the director since 1 July 2010
(2) Asst. Prof.Chonawat Srisa-arn resigned from the director since 1 December 2010
(3) Mr. Anant Tangtatswas take the position instead of Mr.Pravate Amornsin  on 9 August 2010
(4) Mr. David Justinus Emery resigned from the director since 1 August 2011

(5) Mr. Teoh Khiam Boon take the position instead of Mr. David Justinus Emery on 9 August 2011

Monetary remuneration (Executive Committee)
The overall remuneration for the Executive Committee and the Director who involve in management in the

forms of salaries.

Year 2011 Year 2010

Total 5 persons Total 5 persons
Total amount 11,078,685.00 Baht Total amount 8,846,200.00 Baht
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Other Remuneration
BOL's total contribution to the provident fund for 5 members of its management was 239,203.00 Baht in
2011 and 228,216.00 Baht for 5 members in 2010.
In Year 2011 Directors, Executives and Employees exercised ESOP warrant as detail below :
e Directors 8 members fotaled 2,700,000 Shares
o Executives 2 members totaled 425,000 Shares

e Employees 22 members totaled 8,419,700 Shares

The detail of ESOP Warrants :
Business Online Public Company Limited allotted the ESOP warrants to directors, Executive and employees
of the company under the ESOP Warrant on 31 August 2007. In the year 2011, the company has exercised ESOP

warrant on 31 May 2011 and 30 November 2011. Details of the allotment are as follows:

o Numbers of Warrants under ESOP warrants : 37,500,000  Units

o Number of Ordinary Shares in reserve for the ESOP warranfs : 37,500,000  shares

» Date of issuance and offering : 31 August 2007

* Exercise period : The last business days of November

and May and offering of warrants.

o Exercise ratio : 1 warrant : 1 ordinary share
* Exercise price : 0.682 Baht per share
e Term : 5 years from the warrant issuing date

1. Results of the exercise of ESOP warrants in year 2011 are as follow :
1.1 Number of exercising warrant-holders

May 2011 9 persons
November 2011 32 persons
1.2 Number of exercised warrants (year 2011) 11,644,700 units

1.3 Number of ordinary shares issued for this exercise period (year 2011) 11,544,700 shares
1.4 Balance of the fotal ESOP warrants 2,405,300 units

2. Amount of money received from the shares issued through the exercise of warrants in year 2011
- Total amount 7,873,485.40 Baht
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY

The company sees the importance of good governance and has put appropriate monitoring process in
place while instiling the value of business ethics in dealing with our customers, partners, competitors, members

of the public and our staffs.

We believe that good corporate govemance policy, which consists of competent management, qualified
and accountable directors, mechanism of checks and balances for fransparent and auditable operations, respect
for the rights of all shareholders, and equitable tfreatment for all stakeholders are the key factors in maximizing
the economic value of the company and increasing the sustainable long-term retum on investment to our

shareholders.

The Board of Directors aims to manage the company by using the corporate govemnance policies in order
to operate the company with efficiency while achieving the company’s objectives. The corporate governance
policies can be divided into 5 categories as follow:

. Rights of Shareholders

Il. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

lll. The Roles of Company Regarding Stakeholders
IV. Disclosure of Information and Transparency

V. Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

I. Rights of Shareholders

1. Shareholders are the owners of the company. They control the company through the appointment of the
board of directors to serve their inferests in making significant decisions for the company. Therefore the company
should encourage shareholders to exercise their righfs.

2. Fundamental rights of shareholders :

» Trade or transfer shares, receive share certificates, and have the rights to access, obtain relevant and adequate
information, operational results, and management policies in the timely manner and on a regular basis.

e Have the rights to receive dividends.

* Participate and vote in the shareholder meetings to elect or remove members of the Board, appoint the
external auditors, and make decisions on any fransactions that affect the company such as dividends
payment, making amendments fo the memorandum of association, capital increases or decreases, and
the approval of extraordinary transactions, etc.

o Shareholders should be fully informed of the criteria and procedures governing shareholders meetings that
include sufficient information regarding the issues to be decided in each agenda. This should be provided
in advance of the meeting. Shareholders should be able to query directors both in the meeting and by
sending their questions in beforehand. They should also be allowed fo propose an agenda and vote by proxy.

» The Board of Directors must recognize shareholders rights and avoid any actions that violate those rights.

3. Shareholders shall receive meeting invitation letter and information on venue, date, time, all agenda items
with complefe supplementary information 14 days prior to the meeting date. All information regarding shareholders
meeting shall be posted on the company’s website before the meeting. The company has to provide suitable
place and time that most attendees can attend the meeting. Furthermore, all shareholders should be treated

equally according fo revalant law and regulation.
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4. Chairman of the Board shall aftend the meeting to answer shareholders’ queries or appoint other directors or
managers to elaborate on the answers in greater detail.

5. Affer the meeting, shareholders have clear understanding and able fo access minute of meeting and voting results.

In the year 2011, the company has managed to comply with principle of the Good Corporate Governance
under the rights of Shareholders policy as follows:

e The company has distributed its operating profit by paying dividend to all shareholders at 0.05 and 0.04
Baht per share, as of April 28, 2011 and September 1, 2011.

e The company has sentf; an invitation for the annual general meeting with the agenda along with the directors’
comments for consideration; letter of attorney (as required by law); the list of independent directors; advice
on authorizing a proxy so that shareholders can designate a proxy in aftending the annual general meeting
while providing stamp duty for proxy which is free of charge; and map of the company to shareholders

14 days prior to the meeting.

The company has sent letter of meeting invitation to all company’s shareholders. The company’s registrar
delivered the document fo all shareholders on March 22, 2011. In the same time, there was an announcement
on the company’s official website, http://www.BOL.co.th under the tab of Investor Relation.

e The Chairman of the Board attend the shareholders’ meeting on April 5, 2011 (referred to Minute of Meeting
of that day).

The company disclosed the Minute of Meeting on the company’s official website, http://www.BOL.co.th,

within 14 days after the meeting date. So both the aftended and absent shareholders acknowledge the

voting results of each agenda.

In order to open new channel to allow minority shareholders to propose agenda(s) and nominate
director(s) to be appointed in the shareholders” meeting, during December 1-31, 2011, the company had
opened an opportunity for any shareholders to propose agenda(s) and/or nominate director(s) to be considered
and/or appointed in the Annual General Meeting 2012 via the company’s website.

e The company has disclosed the directors” remuneration for shareholders” approval on a yearly basis along

with the policies and criteria used in determining the directors’ remuneration.

* The company does not make any additions or alferations to the agenda and other important information
without nofifying the shareholders during the annual general meeting for the year 2011 while giving the
shareholders to share their opinions and voice their concems during the meeting.

[I. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

1. Shareholders have voting rights in accordance with the number of shares that they hold, and have equal
rights equality with regard to accessing company information.

2. Shareholders shall receive necessary information from the company that is sufficient, fair and timely, and the
company shall not display bias towards any one group of shareholders by providing them with information
that have not been made public.

3. In the shareholders” meetings, the shareholders shall be treated with faimess.

4. The company encourages the use of proxy forms on which shareholders can specify their voting preferences.
The company provides an option for shareholders to appoint the Chairman of the Audit Committee, who is
an independent director, as their proxy.

5. For the sake of transparency and historical record, the company encourages the use of voting cards.

6. The company has mechanisms to prevent insider frading in order to protect fraud and the leak of information.
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The company conducts its business according to regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) and the

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). We put significant considerations on transparency and faimess, especially

on conflict of interest issues. In addition, the disclosure of information in timely manner is always emphasized.

For the company interests, the internal control on the use of information is clearly stated in the company

handbook. The penalty will be imposed on management and staff who disclose internal information to public or

use them for personal benefits.

Moreover, the shareholders structure and details of shares held by executives are fully disclosed in annual report.

In the year 2011, the company to comply with the principle of the Good Governance, under the “Equitable

Treatment of shareholders policy” as follows:

¢ The company notified Shareholders of their rights in the Shareholder’s Meeting, such as the right to vote
(one share, one vote), the right fo assign a proxy to attend the meeting according to the company’s Articles
of Association.

¢ The company aranged to provide 3 types of Proxy Form, similar to those set by the Department of Business
Development, Ministry of Commerce, for shareholders. In addition, the company explained in detail how a
shareholder can assign his/her rights as a shareholder fo a proxy in writing, as an aftachment to the letter
of meeting invitation.

e The company arranged to have voting cards on every agenda to facilitate voting and transparency of
vote counting.

o The company set measures to prevent insider trading. For instance, the company secretary would notify
directors and executives of the “no trading” period (1 month prior to the announcement of the company’s
quarterly result) to promote awareness and equitable treatments to all shareholders.

1. The Roles of Company Regarding Stakeholders

1.

The Board of Directors must be aware of the rights of stakeholders as stipulated by law, and should support
cooperation between the company and stakeholders in the creation of prosperity, employment and activities
with a sustainable financial status. The Board of Directors shall be sure that the rights of stakeholders are being

protected and practiced.

. The Board of Directors must take info account the benefits received and given by stakeholders in generating

competitiveness and profits for the company.

. The company recognizes the rights of all parties, and issue policies to reassure the shareholders, employees,

customers, business partners, creditors, competitors, including public and society, They are suitably benefited

from the company’s operations and must encourage the collaboration of these parties to ensure a stable

future of the company, this is fair for all the parties concemned.

o Shareholders The company determines to be a good representative of shareholders in carrying out the
business in order fo maximize shareholder satisfaction with regards to sustainable long-term growth while
disclosing fransparent and reliable information.

o Employees All members of staff are valuable assets and a critical factor for success, so the company must

place emphasis on developing and promoting a good culture and working atmosphere, teamwork, courtesy,
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and respect for individudality. The employment, promotion and fransfer of all staff members shall be conducted

in a fair manner based on ethical standards whilst maximizing human resource utilization. The company is

responsible for implementing and maintaining a safe working environment to protect the lives and property

of all of our employees. The company must also strictly adhere to employment law.

o Customers Customer satisfaction and consumer confidence are very important to the company. The company
aims to provide high quality goods and services at reasonable prices, and maintain good relationships with
our customers. The company has thus determined the following guidelines:

- Products and Services
The company shall provide high quality products and services, while continuously improving their standards.
Meanwhile, we aim to disclose all of the information that is related to the products with integrity.

- Confidentiality of Customers’ Information
Directors, management, and staff members at all levels shall not disclose any information on customers
without prior permission from those customers or authorized personnel of any company in the Group.

The only exception to this is information requested by law enforcement officers in accordance with the law.

Business Partners and Creditors The company’s dealings with any business partner shall be conducted in a
manner that upholds the reputation of the company and all relevant laws. All company personnel must be
aware of the common interests of the company’s business partners and treat them equitably. The selection
of business partners shall be fair. The company shall also consider its business partners to be the key factor

in jointly creating a value chain for customers.

Competitors The company has a policy of free and fair competition and will not try to monopolize the
industry. The company will not force its business partners to distrioute only the company’s products. The

company shall not acquire information on its competitors by any illegal or unethical methods.

Responsibility to Society and the Environment The company is aware that it is a Thai company and has a
responsibility to Thailand and Thai society. The company is committed to making a contribution to society
by supporting activities of public interest and cooperating with the communities in which those activities
are located.

In the year 2011, the company has managed to comply with the principle of the Good Corporate Govermance,
under the Role of the Company Regarding Stakeholders policy as follows:

» The company sees that our staffs are our most valuable asset, and their health is an important factor of
safisfaction of their working environment. The company provided health check-up service on a yearly basis,
which, this year, ook place on September 27, 2011.

e The company provides provident fund for staffs.

* The company organized regular fraining and workshop to enhance employees’ knowledge in various fields.

o Most valuable resource of the company, health of employees is considered one of the factors that keep
employees happy with work. The company organized annual health check-up for all employees to promote
good hedalth. The latest check-up was carried out on September 27, 2011.

e The company regularly participated in charitable and social activities. The most recent was the sponsoring
of the "Card for You” campaign organized by the Better Thailond Foundation where disable and underprivileged
children were invited to enfer a painting confest. This event is 9th year which held on September 17, 2011.
The winning paintings were used by the company to print its 2012 New Year's greeting card.

» During the flooding disaster which occurred in the central provinces including Bangkok and ifs vicinity , the
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company has offered help to affected employees through the followings:
1. Finding temporary residence for employees and their families that they could reside until they could retun to
their homes safely after the situation retum the normal.

2. Donating financial aid in case the employee’s properties are damaged.

IV. Disclosure of Information and Transparency

1. The company encourages disclosure of information with correctness, completeness, fransparency and
financial information/reports, operational results, and other related information in a timely manner, in order
for investors and all relevant parties fo use these information when making decisions to frade via distribution
channels and media of the SET (The Stock Exchange of Thailand) and SEC (The Security and Exchange
Commission) which may include websites of companies that provide security frading services while providing
information in Thai and English.

2. The company provides a summary of the Corporate Govermnance Policy approved by its Board of Directors
through various channels such as the annual report and website.

3. The company provides a statement of the Board’s responsibilities concerning the company’s financial report. This
statement is presented alongside the auditor’s report in the company’s the Financial Statements (56-1) and
annual report (56-2).

4. The company discloses the roles and responsibilities of the Board of Directors and Internal Audit Committee,
the total number of meetings and the number of meetings each member attends, as well as the results
of tasks performed during the year in the annual report and in shareholder meeting notices, according to
the SET and the SEC regulations.

5. The company sefs up a unit fo directly take charge of providing information and communicating with shareholders,

investors and financial analyst.

In the year 2011, the company has managed to comply with the principle of the Good Corporate Govemance under
the Disclosure of information and transparency policy as follows:

* The company disclosed its financial statements, letter of meeting invitation to shareholders meetings, other
company’s information, which submitted to the SET (The Stock Exchange of Thailond) under the tab “Investor relations”
in company’s website. It was also a communication channel between investors and Investor Relations and
provision of company’s news.

e The company submitted the financial statements to the Securities and Exchange Commission/ Stock Exchange
of Thailand, within the specified period and there is no conditional advice from the auditor.

e The company disclosed the attendance fo the Board meetings of each director in its annual report.

e The company has never been requested to resubmit the financial statements from the Stock Exchange of

Thailand and the Securities and Exchange Commission.

V. Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
1. Structure of the Board
1.1 The company’s Board of Directors comprises of 9 directors who specialize in various aspects of business.
The Board of Directors’ structure is as follows:

e Two Executive Directors who represent 22.22% of the Board.
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* Seven non-Executive Directors who represent 77.78% or more than three-fourth of the entire Board. This
composition represents a good balance in monitoring management’s decisions. There are 3 independent
directors which represent 33.33% of the Board (or one-third) who meet the qualifications under the
Stock Exchange of Thailand and Securities and Exchange Commission” regulations.

Moreover, the company had a policy to appoint different persons in the positions of the Chairman
of the Board and the Executive Chairman.

1.2 The appointment of directors must be made in accordance with the stipulated schedule, and the nomination
of direcfors for election shall be made with transparency and clarity. Background information on the candidates
must be sufficiently detailed to assist in the selection process.

1.3 The background of all the directors must be disclosed in detail to the public, and shall be disclosed for
any changes in the composition of the Board.

2. Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
Refer to duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors (Page 14)
3. Duration of Office

In each annual general shareholders” meeting, one-third of the directors shall vacate their positions. In

the first and second years following the registration of the company, the directors shall conduct a random

draw to decide which members are to vacate their positions, unless they have determined any other method
among themselves. In subsequent years, the directors who have been in their positions longest should vacate
their posts. Directors whose term in office has thus ended may be re-selected.

4. Meeting of the Board of Directors

The annual general meeting of shareholders will be organized and take place within 4 months after the

end of company’s fiscal or accounting year. There are also the Board meetings every 3 months whose yearly

schedule is announced in advance and special meetings can be organised as necessary. To schedule a

meeting of the Board of the Directors, Chairman of the Board of the Directors and Executive Chairman will

consider and approve agenda. The company secretary of the Board will then deliver letter of meeting invitation,
agenda and related documents to the directors at least 7 days in advance, to allow directors time to study
the information before meeting.

The Chairman of the Board of the Directors will chair the meeting with appropriate time allocation on

each agenda for directors to discuss and express their opinion freely, especially on critical issues to achieve

a fairly balanced benefit for shareholders and stakeholders. The Chairman will ensure that the management

presents relevant information to support the discussions. The company secretary will take note and prepare

Minute of Meeting within 14 days. He or she will keep record of the minute of meeting on file fogether with

other reference documents as well as supporting the Board of the Directors to perform their duties in compliance

with laws, regulations and resolutions of Shareholders” Meetings. The company secretary will also coordinate
with other parties concemned.
5. Remuneration of Directors

Remuneration of directors: the Board of Director determines the remuneration of directors in a clear and

fransparent manner that are sufficient to attract, and retain directors with desirable qualification directors.

Additional remuneration shall be granted to directors appointed to the Audit Committee as appropriate.

Consideration for granting all such remuneration shall be based on relevant experience, skill and expertise of

respective directors.
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Remuneration of executives : Remuneration of executives will be according to the company’s operating
results as well as achievements of each individual executive.
6. Sub-Committee
The company arranged to set up a subcomittee, which is the Audit Committee to assist the Board in monitoring

the work of each director.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is a part of the Board of Directors. Besides, the Audit Committee who has been appointed
by the Board of Director and shareholders consists of 3 person, one of whom must possess qualifications in
accounting and finance. Their qualifications comply with the regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand
with regards to independence. There must be a chief of Internal Audit Department who will also act as a
secretary fo the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has the following duties and authorities.

Refer to duties and responsibilities of Audit Committee (Page 16)

Qualifications of Audit Committee members

1. Any Audit Committee member and his or her related person shall hold not over 1 percent of the paid-up
capital of the company, companies within the group, partner companies and related companies.

2. Audit committee shall be directly and indirectly independent from the company’s financial operations and
management. This extends to companies within the same group and its subsidiaries. The committee shall
not hold such interests for the period of 1 year prior to their appointment with the exception that the Board
of Directors has decided that such interests do not affect the committee’s independent views.

3. Audit Committee members shall not be appointed to act as representatives to take care of interests of
major shareholders or others related fo the major shareholders.

4. Audit committee members shall not be involved in the company administration, and shall not be employees,
staff or consultants who receive a regular monthly salary from the company, companies in a group, partner
companies, related companies or the company’s major shareholders.

5. Audit committee members shall not be involved with, or the close relatives of, the company’s executives
or major shareholders.

6. Audit Committee members must be able to provide comments or assessment of the work delegated by
the company’s Board of Directors, without being under control of the executives or major shareholders of

the company, including their relatives.

Duration of Office

Members of the Audit Committee shall remain in office for two years, including additional appointments and
withdrawals from the Audit Committee. Members of the Audit Committee whose term in office has expired
may be re-appoinfed. Resignation from the Audit Committee, member(s) of the audit committee shall submit
histher) letter of resignation to the Chairman of the Board of Directors af least 30 days in advance. The Board
of Directors shall approve resignations and send copies of resignation letters to the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Should a vacancy arise on the Audit Committee for reasons other than the expiry of the duration of office,
the Board of Directors shall appoint a person with all the necessary qualifications to replace the resigned
person. The appointed person shall remain in office only for the remaining term of office of the person whom
they are replacing, and the Stock Exchange of Thailand shall be nofified accordingly.
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Audit committee meetings

1. The Audit Committee shall hold meetings once every each quarter to deliberate the quarterly budget and
other issues in accordance with Audit framework. The Chairman of the Audit Committee may call for meetings
in special instances to deliberate issues that are necessary or urgent as deemed appropriate.

2. In calling a meeting of the Audit Committee, the Chairman of the Audit Committee, or the secretary of
the Audit Committee through the order of the Chairman of the Audit Committee, shall send a letfter to the
members of the Audit Committee no less than seven days prior to the date of the meeting. An exception
may be made in urgent circumstances, the meeting may be announced by other means or scheduled for
an earlier suitable period.

3. The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall report the minutes of the meeting fo the Board of Directors on
the following day.

4. The secretary of the Audit Committee shall not have the right to vote.

7. Selection of Directors
Refer to selection of Directors (Page 17)
8. Executive Committee
Refer to duties and responsibilities of the Executive Committee. (Page 15)
9. Training and Knowledge Development of the Board of Directors
Every newly appointed director shall be duly informed of the regulations and information of the company and
its subsidiaries as needed before performing their duties. Each director would receive proper training to
continuously develop their knowledge in order to help them efficiently perform their duties and effectively control

the business operation of the company.

In the year 2011, the company has managed to comply with the principle of the Good Govemnance under
responsibility of Board of the Directors as follows:
e The company has appointed Mr. Teoh Khiam Boon as a director on 9 August, 2011, in place of one director
who resigned. He attends to director training course the Director Accredited Program on February 27, 2012.
» The directors have taken part in determining the company’s vision, mission, strategies, goals and business
plan, and also evaluating the performance of the management.
e The directors have responsibility in ensuring that their conduct complies with the law, mission, company’s

regulations including shareholders” resolution with integrity while protecting the company’s inferests.
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Employee

Management 4
Sales & Marketing 16
Customer Service 5
Product & Business Development 10
D&B Business 7
D&B Duntrade 3
Data & Information Operation 24
Business Analyst 9
Application and Data Management 7
Network and Security Management 6
News Online 7
Data Center 9
Internal Audit 3
Accounting 8
Human Resource 5
Administrative 6

Total 129

As of December 2010 and December 2011, the company numbered 119 and 129 respectively.

Compensation for Employees

Details Year 2011 Year 2010
Salaries and Bonuses (Baht) 65,002,934.53 55,270,490.95
Provident Fund (Baht) 983,313.00 924,403.00

Human Resource Development Policy

The company provides fraining and developing programs for ifs staff on a regular basis. A newly recruiting
employee will be offered trainings to enable them to understand their respective duties. Seminars, training and
workshops are organized for staff continuously to increase their knowledge and enhance job skills. Our overseas
partners also send their personnel to train BOL staff regarding their new services and BOL occasionally send our

staff for overseas visit.

Labour Disputes Over the Past Three Years
None.



INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The company’s Board of Directors and Executfives have confinuously emphasized the importance of the
infernal control system in order to have an adequate intemnal control system suitable for the company’s business
operation to achieve the highest management efficiency as well as taking care of property, reducing mistakes
and waste that might occur fo the company, managing finance and risk, managing and keeping security
of data and information technology system, and supervising the performance and compliance with rules and
regulations of authorities agencies fo ensure that company’s operations would be able to achieve the objectives
and creatfe the highest additional value in the long-term. The evaluation of infernal control system could be

summarized as follows:

1. Control Environment

e The company clearly set business operation goals which were considered by the company’s Board of Directors,
the goals can be substantially measured for use as employees’ working guidelines.

e The company clearly and suitably created the organizational structure and chains of command and assigned
authority and responsibilities to them in writing, all employees had acknowledged their roles, authority, duty,
and responsibility and were aware of their responsibilities.

» The company emphasised the importance of honesty and morality in doing business by setting policies and

regulations in writing.

2. Risk Evaluation
The management  identified risks from internal and extemnal factors which might have impact on the
achievement of organizational objectives. The company suitably analysed and managed risks while ensuring

that its operations comply with the measures that were set.

3. Control Activities

The company has effective, suitable, and adequate control activities as follows: setting policies and regulations
on working in writing; reviewing financial reports and non-financial performance reports by the management
and the Audit Committee so that both teams can monitor each other; imposing scope of authority and the
level of authorised and delegation financial in writing; preparing supporting documents that aids the delegation
of duties to relevant divisions and persons to ensure that the risk management system, intemal control system,
and business supervision process of the company were sufficiently and efficiently provided in accordance with

the company’s objectives.

4. Information Technology and Communication

The company continuously develops its information fechnology system and datfa system and sufficiently
made various important data to be used in making decisions.  Consideration on minutes of the committee was
made by summoarizing commifttee’s opinion.  Account enfry was made in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles to fit the company’s business characteristics. Moreover, the company had the information
technology system to facilitate its works, financial and operation result reports, compliance with the policy
and regulations used in contfroling and carrying out the organization’s activities to ensure that the information
technology and communication, both inside and outside the organization, enabled the organization fo achieve

its objectives and goals.
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5. Monitoring and Assessment

The company has its own performance monitoring system which is used by the company’s Board of Directors to
compare the operation results of each year and so far has found that they have met the targeted goals, the
infernal audit unit reports directly to the Audit Committee fo audit the performance fo see whether it complied
with the predefined internal control system.

After the Board of Directors made consideration, it unanimously agreed that the company had adequate

and suitable internal audit intemnal control system.

Monitoring of Insider Trading

The company’s Board of Directors has recognized the importance of preventing the company’s internal
information against use for personal benefits, and therefore made a policy fo keep confidential information that
have not been made available to the public. Such confidential information shall only be disclosed to the parties
concemed.

The company has advised executives of their duties fo
report on the company’s stocks held by them as well as their
spouses and their minor children, and to report changes to
the Securities and Exchange Commission in section 59 and
the penalty in section 275 according to the Act on Securities
and Securities Exchange BE. 2535. Moreover, the company prohibifs
directors, executives including their spouses and their minor
children from purchasing, seling, transferring, or taking fransfer
of, the company’s stock using intemal information not yet
disclosed to the public, and from trading of stocks particularly
during 1 month before disclosure of financial statements to
the public, In the cases where directors, executives’ including
their spouses and minor children purchase, sell, fransfer, or
taking transfer of the company’s stocks do not fall under the
above categories, all such transactions shall be reported to

the Securities Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange

of Thailand within 3 working days of their occurrence. There
——— are reports for the company’s stocks held by directors and
executives at the quarterly Board of Directors Meeting.

4 e As for employees, the company includes this subject as
' a matter of ethics to be observed by employees. Employees
/ must not use their positions, duties and the company’s confidential

— information to seek benefits for themselves and related parties.
If any of the above persons are found to use the company’s
=== . . infernal information for their own benefits, the company shall
deem that such persons have committed a serious disciplinary

- """'-’-. offense and will be subjected fo penalization pursuant fo the

company’s Articles of Association.



LIST OF DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING
PERSONS IN THE COMPANY

1 Mr. Noravat

2 Mr. Min

3 Mr. Prayoon

4 Mr. Teoh

5 Ms. Chamaipormn
6 Mr. Wilson

7 Mr. Anant

8 Ms. Manida

9 Ms. Suteera
10 Ms. Surat
11 Mr. Chaiyapom
12 Ms. Kanyapan

Remark : x = Chairman
/ = Director

// = Executive Committee

=]

c

(1]
=

©
o
=
o
o
(]

Suwarn X,/
Intanate I %] x/
Rattanachaiyanont /
Khiom Boon /
Apikulvanich na W
Teo Yong Peng /
Tangtatswas /
Zinmerman /
Sripaibulya /
Rithirong I
Kiatnuntavimon il
Buranarom Il /

/

/

/
a
I
11

Core & Peak

Data One



INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM-
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS ANNUAL REPORT 2011

swnuUs=U 2554
page 116 - 119

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

b \ |I i
If I./f o
The company has reported connected transactions with related parties in the Note to Financial Statements

as of 31 December 2011, item 8. The company has entered info connected transactions taking into account

the following guidelines:

Necessity and Rationale of Connected Transactions
Connected fransactions are necessary and reasonable to create the best benefits to the company and are
considered to be transacted under ordinary course of business. The company pays and/or receives payments

according fo fair market prices.

View of the Audit Committee
The company’s Audit Committee has deliberated connected transactions and formed opinions that the
connected tfransactions are reasonably made with sensible and fair pricing to the company, and are indifferent

should the company transact with non-related parties.

Procedure to Approve Connected Transactions

Every connected fransaction has to undergo procedure for approval in compliance with rules and regulations
stipulated in the Securities and Exchange Act (No.4) B.E. 2551 and other related rules, announcements and
guidelines made by The Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) and The Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
relevant authorities conceming connected transactions entered into by listed companies. A director who relates

to a connected fransaction has to be refrained from casting vote on such matter.

Connected Transaction Tendency

Connected fransactions that have been made or are fo be made in the future shall be according to ordinary
course of business with to transferring of benefits between the company and related parties. The company has
appointed the Audit Committee to audit and consider the disclosure of connected transactions, which may
potentially create conflict of interest to comply with the Securities and Exchange Act and other related rules,
announcements and guidelines made by relevant authorities concemning connected transactions entered info
by listed companies, as well as in accordance with standard set by the Institute of Certified Accountants and

Auditors of Thailand (Federation of Accounting Professions)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE’S REPORT

The Audit Commifttee of Business Online Public Company Limited is composed of three (3) independent directors.
Each member of the Committee meets the quadlification as defined by The Stock Exchange of Thailand regulations.
The members of the Committee are as follows:

1. Mr. Anant Tangtatswas Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee
2. Ms. Manida Zinmerman Independent Director and Audit Committee
3. Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya Independent Director and Audit Committee

Duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as follows:

e To review the financial report to be accurate, complete, and reliable.

e To oversee adequacy and efficiency of infemnal control system and internal audit system.
» To consider, select, and propose for appointment of the company’s auditor.

* To oversee the company’s compliance with related laws and regulation.

o Other duties assigned by the company’s Board of Directors.

During 2011, the Audit Committee conferred quarterly with the company’s audifor, intemal auditors, management
and the Accounting Department to review the financial reports, discuss and mutually give recommendations
so that the financial reports reflected generally accepted accounting principles. The company’s financial statement
was adequately disclosed and that no transactions, in contrary to the related requirements and regulations,
were found. Each quarter the audit committee submitted a report on audit results fo the Board of Directors.
The major issues could be summarized as follows:

1. Reviewing the quarterly financial statement and annual financial statement proposed to the Board of Directors.

2. Considering and proposing appointment of the company’s auditor and auditor’s remuneration by considering
auditor’s qualification, expertise in auditing and justification of the audit work quantity.

3. Considering objectives and scopes of work and approving audit plan for the year 2012 of the Infernal Audit
section and giving recommendations and remarks.

4. Acknowledging audit results and recommendations for the year 2011 by company’s auditor and the Intemal
Audit section, following up the Management’s corresponding response and proposing to the Board of Directors.

5. Overseeing the company’s major risk management, good infemal control system, compliance with the securities
law, rules and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand or other relevant legal issues.

6. Considering connected fransactions, or fransactions that may lead to conflicts of interests to ensure fairmess
and no fransfer of benefits.

For the year 2012, the Audit Committee has proposed to the Board of Directors to appoint Ms. Siriwan Suratepin
CP.A. Registration No. 4604 and/or Mr. Wichart Lokatekrawee C.P.A. Registration No. 4451 and/or
Ms. Kamontip Lertwitworatep C.P.A. Registration No. 4377 from Ernst & Young Office Limited as the company’s
auditor for the year 2012.

(Bin Vi

Mr. Anant Tangtatswas
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS" DUTIES
ON FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 2011

The Board of Directors of Business Online Public Company Limited understands the responsibility of ensuring
integrity, sufficient, relevant and transparent disclosure of the company’s fiscal year 2011 financial statements.
Such disclosure abides by the generally accepted accounting principles, ensuring the integrity of the company’s
operations/ appropriate accounting policies have been put in place and adhered to on a consistent basis
while due consideration has been placed on the process of preparing the company and the company’s consolidated
fiscal year 2011 financial statements including other information that has been included in this year's annual

report.

To enhance stakeholder trust, the Board appointed an Audit Committee comprising of Independent Directors
with qualifications as stipulated by the guidelines of Stock Exchange of Thailand. Ensuring that the company
provides sufficient, transparent, correct and appropriate financial disclosure along with information regarding
related party transactions is a key function of the committee. Ensuring appropriate, sufficient and effective risk
management guidelines, appropriate infernal control procedures along with robust intemal audit processes are
also the functions of the committee. Legal compliance is at the forefront of the Board’s concems therefore the
committee is also charged with ensuring that the company’s operations adheres to all relevant external and

infernal legal, guidelines and policies.

The Board of Directors believes that the company and the company’s consolidated fiscal year 2011 financial
statements ending 31 December 2011, which has been reviewed by the Audit Committee, management and
the company’s financial auditor to be correct, complete, appropriate, in compliance with generally accepted
accounting practices and employs appropriate accounting policies on a consistent basis. The financial disclosure
is deemed to be transparent, provides an appropriate level of disclosure and is in compliance with all the relevant

legal, guidelines and policies.

- s, //”’*’/

Noravat Suwarn Jack Min Intanate
Chairman of the Board Executive Chairman
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

To the Shareholders of Business Online Public Company Limited

| have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position of Business Online Public
Company Limited and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011, the related consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and have also audited the
separate financial statements of Business Online Public Company Limited for the same period. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the management of the Company and its subsidiaries as to their correctness
and the completeness of the presentation. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on my audit. The consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2010 and for the year then
ended of Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and the separate financial statements of
Business Online Public Company Limited, which are presented herein for comparative purpose, were audited by

another auditor who, under her report dated 1 March 2011, expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

| conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that | plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

| believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and of Business Online Public Company
Limited as at 31 December 2011, and the results of their operations, and cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Without qualifying my opinion on the above financial statements, | draw atfention fo the matter as discussed in
Note 3 and Note 5 to the financial statements, during the current year, the Company adopted the revised and
new accounting standards issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions, and applied them in its preparation
and presentation of the financial statements. For the first-time adoption of TAS 19 Employee Benefits, the Company
elected to recognise the transitional liability, which exceeds the liability that would have been recognised at
the same date under the previous accounting policy, through an adjustment to the beginning balance of retained

eamings in the current year.

S Swgr;r_

Siriwan Suratepin
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4604

Ernst & Young Office Limited
Bangkok: 20 February 2012
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010 (Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements

2011 2010 2011 2010

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 9 59.347.148 48,304,107 58,219,650 47,623,686
Temporary investments 10 = 17,000,000 = 17,000,000
Trade accounts receivable I1 72,886,668 59,471,219 72,886,668 59,471,219
Accrued income 131,279,094 78,896,276 131,279,094 78,896,276
Other current assets 23,595,884 11,266,618 23,416,390 11,262,606
Total current assets 287,108,794 214,938,220 285,801,802 214,253,787

Non-current assets

Restricted bank deposits 12 17,000,100 30,000,100 17,000,100 30,000,100
Investments in subsidiaries 13 = - 5,599,930 999,930
Investment in associated

company 14 30,404,981 30,206,330 30,000,000 30,000,000
Other long-term investment 15 27,864,111 27,864,111 27,864,111 27,864,111
Building improvement and

equipment 16 12,179,071 10,520,270 10,946,738 10,518,417
Infangible assets 17 13,869,482 12,966,974 11,023,981 12,966,974
Other non-current assets 1,334,576 1,330,576 1,334,576 1,330,576
Total non-current assets 102,652,321 112,888,361 103,769,436 113,680,108
Total assets 389,761,115 327,826,581 389,571,238 327,933,895

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010 (Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial

statements statements

Note 2011 2010 2011 2010

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 18 49,207,800 20819.826 49,022,087 20,789,826
Income tax payable 14,857,055 13932964 14,857,055 13,932,964
Other current liabilities
Uneamed revenue 38,617,464 36,358,772 38,617,464 36,358,772
Information utilization fee payable 11,664,194 10,620982 11,564,194 10,620,982
Others 156919400  11,830947 15,792,440 11,830,947
Total current liabilities 130,165,913 93,563,491 129,853240 93,533,491

Non-current liability

Reserve for long-term employee benefits 19 6,765,969 - 6,765969 =
Total non-current liability 6,765,969 - 6,765969 =
Total liabilities 136,931,882 93,663,491 136,619,209 93,533,491

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 20
Registered
787,500,000 ordinary shares
of Baht 0.10 each 78,750,000 78,750,000 78,750,000 78,750,000
Issued and fully paid up
785,094,700 ordinary shares
of Baht 0.10 each
(2010: 773,550,000 ordinary

shares of Baht 0.10 each) 78,509,470 77,355,000 78,509,470 77,355,000
Share premium 75,749,786 69,030,771 75,749,786 69,030,771
Retained eamings
Appropriated - statutory reserve 21 7,875,000 7,875,000 7,875,000 7,875,000
Unappropriated 90,694,938  80,002273 90817773 80,139,633
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 252,829,194 234,263,044 252,952,029 234,400,404
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries 39 46 = =
Total shareholders’ equity 252,829,233 234,263,090 252,952,029 234,400,404
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 389,761,116 327,826,581 389,571,238 327,933,895

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 (Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial

statements statements

Note

2011

2010 2011 2010

Revenues

Online information service income
Other service income

Other income

Total revenues

Expenses
Costs of services
Administrative expenses
Total expenses
Profit before share of income from
investments and corporate income tax
Share of income from investment
in associated company
Profit before corporate income tax
Corporate income tax
Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company

Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries

Earnings per share (Baht)
Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company
Weighted average number of
ordinary shares (shares)
Diluted eamings per share
Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company
Weighted average number of

ordinary shares (shares)

231,283,886 212,419,644 231,283,886 212,419,644
170,384,422 104,032,391 170,384,422 104,032,391
11,316,684 10309817 11292255 10,306,355
412,984,992 326,761,852 412,960,563 326,758,390

22
213,336,654 152,724,035 213,336,654 152,724,035
83,028,031  75,1923056 82819469 75,129,812
296,364,685 227,916,340 296,156,123 227,853,847
116,620,307 98,845,512 116,804,440 98,904,543
198,651 129,703 = =
116,818,958  98,975215 116,804,440 98,904,543
23 (30,582.418) (26,547.895) (30,582.418) (26.547,895)
86,236,640 72427320 86,222,022 72,356,648
86,236,540 72,427,320 86,222,022 72,356,648
86,236,647 72427324 86,222,022  72.356,648

@ (@)
86,236,540 72,427,320

24
0.11 0.09 0.11 0.09
774,717,610 766,527,111 774,717,610 766,527,111

24
0.11 0.09 0.11 0.09
780,868,572 773,630,781 780,868,572 773,630,781

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 (Unit: Baht]

Consolidated financial statements

Equity attributable to the owner of the Company

Retained earnings

Total equity
Issued and Share Appropriated Unappropriated attributable to Total
paid up premium Statutory the owner of shareholders’
share capital reserve the Company equity

Balance as at 31 December 2009 76,535,100 64,217,958 7875000 72,671,644 221299,702 50 221,299,752

Additional ordinary share from

warrant exercised (Note 20) 819,900 4,812,813 - - 5,632,713 - 5,632,713
Dividend paid (Note 27) - - - (65.096,695) (65,096.695) - (65,096,695)
Total comprehensive income for the year = = - (72427,324) 72427324 (&) 72427320
Balance as at 31 December 2010 77,355,000 69,030,771 7875000 80,002,273 234,263,044 46 234,263,090

234,263,090
Balance as at 31 December 2010 77355000 69,030,771  7,875000  80.002273 234263044 46
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting (5.,893,982)
policies for employee benefit (Note 5) = = - (5893982 (5893982 -
Additional ordinary share from 7,873,485

warrant exercised (Note 20) 1,154,470 6,719,015 - - 7.873.485 - (69.649,900)
Dividend paid (Note 27) - = - (69.649.900) (69.649.900) - =
Total comprehensive income for the year = = - 86236547 86,236,547 (7) 86,236,540
Balance as at 31 December 2011 78,509,470 75,749,786 7875000 90,694,938 252,829,194 39 252,829,233

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the financial statements.

Separate financial statements

Issued and Retained earnings Total

paid up. Share premium Appropriated Unappropriated shareholders
share capital

it
Statutory reserve equity

Balance as at 31 December 2009 76,535,100 64,217,958 7,875,000 72,879,680 221,507,738

Additional ordinary share from

warrant exercised (Note 20) 819,900 4,812,813 - - 5,632,713
Dividend paid (Note 27) - - - (65.096,695) (65,096,695)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 72,356,648 72,356,648
Balance as af 31 December 2010 77,355,000 69,030,771 7,875,000 80,139,633 234,400,404
Balance as af 31 December 2010 77.355,000 69,030,771 7,875,000 80,139,633 234,400,404

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting
policies for employee benefit (Note 5) - - - (5.,893,982) (5.893.982)

Additional ordinary share from

warrant exercised (Note 20) 1,154,470 6,719.015 - = 7,873,485
Dividend paid (Note 27) - - - (69.,649,900) (69.649,900)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 86,222,022 86,222,022
Balance as at 31 December 2011 78,509,470 75,749,786 7,875,000 90,817,773 252,952,029

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 (Unit : Baht)

Consolidated finacial Separate financial
statements statements

2011 2010 2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 116,818,958 98,975,215 116,804,440 98,904,543
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to

net cash provided by (paid from) operating

activities:
Depreciation and amortisation 10,039,806 21,638,551 9,938,004 21,634,192
Gain on sales and disposal of equipment

and intangible assets (65.513) (24,297) (55,513) (24,297)
Allowance for impairment loss on assests 939,501 = 1,339,501 =

Share of income from investment in

associated company (198,651) (129,703) = =
Provision for long-term employee benefits 871,987 - 871,987 =
Unrealised loss (gain) on exchange 86,571 (163,239 86,571 (163,239)
Dividend income (9.646,875)  (7.656.250)  (9.646.875)  (7,656,250)
Interest income (854,770) = (830,139) =
Income from operating activities before changes
in operating assets and liabilities 118,001,014  112,640277 118,507,976 112,694,949
Decrease (increase) in operating assets :
Trade accounts receivable (13,388.512) (41,4100  (13,388,512) (41.410)
Accrued income (62,382,818)  (35418,148)  (52,382,818)  (35418,148)
Other current assets (13,177.863) (4.494,441)  (13,002,380)  (4,494,425)
Other non current assets (4,000) 1,500 (4,000) 1,500
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade and other payables 28,274,467 5,075,098 28,118,754 5,075,098
Uneamed revenue 2,258,692 485,290 2,258,692 485,290
Information utilization fee payable 943,212 340,124 943,212 340,124
Other current liabilities 4,088,453 (162,295) 3,961,493 (162,295)
Cash flows from operating activities 74,612,645 78,425,995 75,012,417 78.480,683
Cash paid for corporate income tax (29,658,327)  (19.491.305)  (29.658.,327)  (19.491,305)
Net cash from operating activities 44,954,318 58,934,690 45,354,090 58,989,378

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 (Unit : Baht)

Consolidated finacial Separate financial

statements statements

2011 2010 2011 2010

Cash flows from investing activities

Decrease in temporary investment 17,000,000 4,963,165 17,000,000 4,963,165
Cash paid for investment in subsidiary - - (5,000,000 =
Decrease (increase) in restricted bank deposits 13,000,000  (14,000,000) 13,000,000  (14,000,000)
Proceeds from sales equipment 55,677 41,151 55,677 41,151
Acquisition of equipment (8,160,147)  (4.758,089) (6.829.742)  (4,758,089)
Acquisition of computer software (4,441,133) (6.307.418) (1,593,785)  (5,307.418)
Dividend received 9,646,875 7,656,250 9,646,875 7,656,250
Interest received 763,866 - 739,234 =

Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities 27,865,138 (11,404,941) 27,018,289  (11,404,941)

Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from additional ordinary share

from warrant exercised 7,873,485 5,632,713 7,873,485 5,632,713
Dividend paid (69.649.900)  (65,083.712)  (69.649,900)  (65,083,712)
Net cash used in financing activities 61,776,415)  (59.450,999)  (61,776,415)  (59,450,999)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents 11,043,041  (11,921,250) 10,595,964  (11,866,562)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 48,304,107 60,225,357 47,623,686 59,490,248
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 59,347,148 48,304,107 58219650 47,623,686

Supplemental cash flow information :
Non-cash related transactions from operating
activities
Reserve for long-term employee benefits 5,893,982 - 5,893,982 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011

1. General information

Business Online Public Company Limited (*The Company”) is a public company incorporated and
domiciled in Thailand. Its major shareholders are Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd., which is incorporated
in Thailand, and Keppel Communications Pte. Ltd., which is incorporated in Singapore. Its principal activity
is service provider and developer of local and global financial information system and as an online and
offline business information service provider as well as consulting service and database management. The
registered office of the Company is at 900/8-10 SVOA Tower, Rama Il Road, Kwang Bangpongpang, Khet
Yannawa, Bangkok.

2. Basis of preparation
2.1 The financial stafements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards enunciated under
the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made in compliance with the
stipulations of the Nofification of the Department of Business Development dated 28 September 2011,
issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the Company.
The financial statements in English language have been franslated from the Thai language finoncial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise
disclosed in the accounting policies.

2.2 Basis of consolidation
a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Business Online Public
Company Limited (“the Company”) and the following subsidiary companies (“the subsidiaries”):

Percentage of

Country of shareholding
Company’s name Nature of business incorporation 2011 2010
Percent Percent
D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Business Information Thai 99.99 99.99
Service
iBOL Co., Ltd. Business intelligent Thai 99.99 -

tool and software

as a service

b) Subsidiaries are fully consolidated, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and
continue fo be consolidated until the dafe when such control ceases.

c) The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same significant accounting
policies as the Company.

d) Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiary companies have
been eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.

e) Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of the subsidiaries that
are not held by the Company and are presented separately in the consolidated profit or loss and

within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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2.3 The separate financial statements, which present investments in subsidiaries and associates under

the cost method, have been prepared solely for the benefit of the public.

3. Adoption of new accounting standards during the year
During the current year, the Company adopted a number of revised and new accounting standards,
issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions, as listed below.

Accounting standards:
TAS 1 (revised 2009)
TAS 2 (revised 2009) Inventories
TAS 7 (revised 2009)
TAS 8 (revised 2009)
TAS 10 (revised 2009)
TAS 11 (revised 2009)
TAS 16 (revised 2009)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Statement of Cash Flows

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
Events after the Reporting Period

Construction Contracts

Property, Plant and Equipment

TAS 17 (revised 2009) Leases
TAS 18 (revised 2009) Revenue
TAS 19 Employee Benefits

TAS 23 (revised 2009)
TAS 24 (revised 2009)
TAS 26

TAS 27 (revised 2009)
TAS 28 (revised 2009)
TAS 29

TAS 31 (revised 2009)
TAS 33 (revised 2009)
TAS 34 (revised 2009)
TAS 36 (revised 2009)
TAS 37 (revised 2009)
TAS 38 (revised 2009)
TAS 40 (revised 2009)

Financial reporting standards:

TFRS 2
TFRS 3 (revised 2009)
TFRS 5 (revised 2009)
TFRS 6

TFRIC 15

SIC 31

Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Investments in Associates

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
Inferests in Joint Ventures

Earnings per Share

Interim Financial Reporting

Impairment of Assets

Provisions, Confingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Intangible Assets

Investment Property

Share-Based Payment
Business Combinations
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations:

Agreements for the Constfruction of Real Estate

Accounting Standard Interpretations:

Revenue-Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services

These accounting standards do not have any significant impact on the financial statements, except

for the following accounting standards.

TAS 19 Employee Benefits
This accounting standard requires employee benefits to be recognised as expense in the period in which
the service is performed by the employee. In particular, an entity has to evaluate and make a provision
for post-employment benefits using actuarial tfechniques. The Company and its subsidiaries previously accounted for

such employee benefits when they were incurred.



The Company and its subsidiaries have changed this accounting policy in the current year and recognise
the liability in the transition period through an adjustment to the beginning balance of retained eamings in
the current year. The change has the effect of decreasing the profit of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year 2011 by Baht 0.87 million, (0.001Baht per share) (Separate financial statements: decreasing profit by
Baht 0.87 million, or 0.001 Baht per share). The cumulative effect of the changes in the accounting policy

has been presented in Note 5 to the financial statements.

New accounting standards issued during the years not yet effective
The Federation of Accounting Professions issued the following new/revised accounting standards that are

effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

Accounting standards:
TAS 12 Income Taxes
TAS 20 (revised 2009)  Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance
TAS 21 (revised 2009)  The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Accounting Standard Interpretations:

SIC 10 Government Assistance-No Specific Relation to Operating Activities
SIC 21 Income Taxes-Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets
SIC 25 Income Taxes-Changes in the Tax Status of an Enfity or its Shareholders

The Company’s management believes that these accounting standards will not have any significant impact
on the financial statements for the year when they are initially applied, except for the following accounting

standards.

TAS 12 Income Taxes
This accounting standard requires an entity to identify temporary differences, which are differences
between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the accounting records and its tax base, and to

recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities under the stipulated guidelines.

At present, the management is evaluating the impact on the financial statements in the year when this

standard is adopted.

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting policies due to the adoption of new accounting standards
During the current year, the Company made the changes to its significant accounting policies described in
Note 3 to the financial statements, as a result of the adoption of revised and new accounting standards.
The cumulative effect of the changes in the accounting policies has been separatfely presented in the

statements of changes in shareholders’ equity.

The amount of adjustment affecting the statement of financial position as at

1 January 2011 are summarised below.
(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements and
Separate financial statements
as at 1 January 2011

Statements of financial position

Increase in reserve for long-term employee benefits 5,893,982

Decrease in unappropriated retained eamings (5.893,982)
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6. Significant accounting policies

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Revenue recognition

Rendering of services

Revenues from purchases of limited numbers of hours of access to the Company’s information services
by customers, granting users access to information on juristic persons, business news, and information on
bankrupts and auctions due to bankruptcy, are generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the
period of usage stipulated in the agreement. This method is used because such revenues are derived
from sales made direct to customers rather than through distribution agents and because several types
of service are provided to customers simultaneously over a period which has a fixed termination date.
The Company therefore believes that there is no material difference between recognising revenue

based on a straight-line basis and recognising it on hours actually used.

Service income under long-term contracts is recognised on the basis of percentage of completion.
The percentage of completion is determined based on services performed to date as a percentage

of total services to be performed.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective inferest rate.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid investments with

an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.

Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is
provided for the estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is
generally based on collection experience and analysis of debt aging.

Investments

a) Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which the Company classifies as other investments, are
stated at cost net of allowance for loss on diminution in value (if any).

b) Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method.

©) Investments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for in the separate financial statements
using the cost method.

Building improvement and equipment/Depreciation

Building improvement and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance
for loss on impairment of assets (if any). Depreciation of building improvement and equipment is
calculated by reference to their costs amounts on the straight-line basis over the following estimated

useful lives:
Building improvement 5 years
Equipment and others 3-5 years

Depreciation is included in determining income.
No depreciation is provided on building under improvement.



6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

An item of building improvement and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset
is included in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Infangible assets
Infangible assets are caried af cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (if any).

Infangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a systematic basis over the economic useful life and
tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method of such intangible assets are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. The amortisation expense is charged to profit or loss.

A summary of the intangible assets with finite useful lives is as follows:

Useful lives

Computer software 5 years

Related party transactions
Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the Company,

whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest
in the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key management personnel,

directors, and officers with authority in the planning and direction of the Company’s operations.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the date of
the fransaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
Baht af the exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period.

Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs impairment reviews in respect of the
building improvement and equipment and other intangible assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised when the
recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use, is less than the carrying amount.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

6.10 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, wages, bonuses and confributions to the social security fund are recognised as expenses
when incurred.
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Post-employment benefits
Defined confribution plans

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is monthly contrib-
uted by employees and by the Company. The fund’s assets are held in a separate trust fund and the
Company’s contributions are recognised as expenses when incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Company has obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to employees upon
retirement under labor law. The Company treats these severance payment obligations as a defined

benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by a professionally qualified independent

actuary based on actuarial techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post-employment benefits are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

For the first-time adoption of TAS 19 Employee Benefits, the Company elected to recognise the transitional
liability, which exceeds the liability that would have been recognised at the same date under the
previous accounting policy, through an adjustment to the beginning balance of retained eamings in
the current year.

6.11 Income tfax
Income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities,

based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.

7. Significant accounting judgements and estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles at times
requires management to make subjective judgements and estimates regarding matters that are inherently
uncertain. These judgements and estimates affect reporfed amounts and disclosures; and actual results could

differ from these estimates. Significant judgements and estimates are as follows:

Leases
In defermining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease, the management
is required to use judgement regarding whether significant risk and rewards of ownership of the leased

asset has been transferred, taking into consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement.

Allowance for doubtful accounts
In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgement and
estimates based upon, among other things, past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts and

the prevailing economic condition.

Building improvement and equipment/Depreciation
In determining depreciation of building improvement and equipment, the management is required to make
estimates of the useful lives and residual values of the building improvement and equipment and to review

estimate useful lives and residual values when there are any changes.



In addition, the management is required to review building improvement and equipment for impairment
on a periodical basis and record impairment losses when it is determined that their recoverable amount is
lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgements regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses

relating to the assetfs subject to the review.

Intangible assets
The initial recognition and measurement of intangible assets, and subsequent impairment testing, require
management to make estimates of cash flows to be generated by the asset or the cash generating units

and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans
The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial techniques. Such
defermination is made based on various assumptions, including discount rate, future salary increase rate,

mortality rate and staff turnover rate.

Related party transactions
During the years, the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business fransactions with its related
parties. Such transactions were concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between the

Company and those related parties and were in ordinary course of business. The significant fransactions are

summarised below:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidatedfinancial Separate financial
statements statements Pricing policy

2011 2010 2011 2010

Transaction with related parties
Services income 17.478 23,324 17,478 23,324 Market price, Cost plus margin,

Mutually agreed prices as

stipulated in the agreements
Purchase of equipment 7,036 3.401 5,877 3401 Market price
Services fee expense 40,741 18,435 40,521 18,435 Mutually agreed prices as

stipulated in the agreements

As at 31 December 2011, the outstanding balances between the Company and its related parties

tfransactions are as follows:

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements  Separate financial statements
2011 2010 2011 2010
Trade receivable (Note 11)
Related companies Common shareholders and directors 4,602,327 8,541,680 4,602,327 8,541,680
Accrued income
Related companies Common shareholders and directors 1,060,000 1,835,247 1,060,000 1,835,247

Trade and other payables (Note 18)
Related companies Common shareholders and directors 25,141,991 6,656,623 25,133,517 6,656,623
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Directors and management’s benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Company and its subsidiaries had employee

benefit expenses payable to their directors and management as below.

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements ~ Separate financial statements

2011 2010 2011 2010
Short-term employee benefits 16,568,143 16,385,456 16,568,143 16,385,456
Post-employment benefits 534,222 = 534,222 -
Total 17,102,365 16,385,456 17,102,365 16,385,456

9. Cash and cash equivalents

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements  Separate financial statements

2011 2010 2011 2010
Cash 83,417 83,000 83.417 83,000
Bank deposits 59,263,731 48,221,107 58,136,233 47,540,686
Total 59,347,148 48,304,107 58,219,650 47,623,686

As at 31 December 2011, bank deposits carried interests between 0.75 and 3.60 percent per annum

(2010: between 0.25 and 1.30 percent per annum).

10. Temporary investment

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements  Separate financial statements
2011 2010 2011 2010
6 month fixed deposit - 17,000,000 - 17,000,000
As at 31 December 2010, temporary investment carried interests at 1.4 percent per annum.
11. Trade accounts receivable
(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements  Separate financial statements

2011 2010 2011 2010

Trade receivables-related parties

Aged on the basis of due dates

Not yet due 3,428,323 6,413,393 3,428,323 6,413,393
Past due
Up to 3 months 58,208 2,128,287 58,208 2,128,287
3-6 months = - = -
6-12 months 1,115,796 = 1,115,796 =
Total 4,602,327 8,541,680 4,602,327 8,541,680

Trade receivables - unrelated parties

Aged on the basis of due dates

Not yet due 44,513,097 37,167,340 44,513,097 37,167,340
Past due
Up to 3 months 23,769,318 13,762,199 23,769,318 13,762,199
3-6 months 1,926 - 1,926 -
Total 68,284,341 50,929,539 68,284,341 50,929,539

Total trade receivable 72,886,668 59,471,219 72,886,668 59,471,219




12. Restricted banks deposits

These represent fixed deposits pledged with the banks to secure credit facilities and letter of guarantees

issued by the banks.

13. Investment in subsidiaries

Details of investments in subsidiaries as presented in separate financial statements are as follows:

Shareholding

(Unit : Baht)

Allowance for Carryingamounts

Paid-up capital percentage impairment based on
Company’s name of investments  cost method - net
2011 2010 2011 2010 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
(%) (%)
D&B (Thailand) 1,000,000 1,000,000 99.99 99.99 999930 999930 (400,000) - 599930 999930
Co., Ltd.
iBOL Co., Ltd. 5,000,000 = 99.99 - 5,000,000 = = - 5,000,000 =
Total 5999930 999930 (400,000 - 5599930 999,930

On 10 March 2011, the Company had registered a new subsidiary with the Ministry of Commerce named

iBOL Co., Ltd. to provide business intelligent tool and soffware as a service. This new subsidiary has an

initial registered capital comprising 500,000 shares of Baht 10 per share, or a total of Baht 5 million which

is 100 percent called up, with the Company to hold 100 percent.

14. Investment in associated company

14.1 Details of associates:

Nature Country of Percentage
Company’s name  of business incorporation  of shareholding
2011 2010
(%) (%)
Abiks Development Property
Co., Ltd. Development Thai 20

14.2 Share of income and dividend received

20 30404981

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements

cost method

Carrying amount based

on equity method

2011 2010 2011 2010

30,206,330 30,000,000 30,000,000

During the years, the Company has recognised its share of profit from investment in associate company

in the consolidated financial statements and dividend income in the separate financial statements

as follows:

Consolidated

financial statements

Company’s name

2011

Abiks Development Co., Ltd. 198,651

Share of profit from investment in
associate during the year

2010

(Unit : Baht)
Separate
financial statements
Dividend received
during the year
2011 2010

129,703 = =
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Financial information of the associated company is summarised below.

Paid-up capital

Company’s name as at

31 December

2011

Abiks Development

2010

Total assets

as at

31 December

as at
31 December 31

2011 2010 2011

Co., Ltd. 150,000,000 150,000,000 152,231,566 151,208,039 250,827

15. Other long-term investment

Nature of

Company’s name business

Paid-up capital

Percentage of

shareholding

Total liabilities Total revenues

December

2010 2011 2010

s1gnuUs:A

U 2554 (A

(Unit : Baht)
Profit

for the year ended for the year ended

31 December
2011 2010

176,405 1,937,748 1,495,162 949,105 648,515

Investment value
under cost method

(Unit : Baht)

Dividend received
during the year

National Credit Credit information

Bureau Co., Ltd. provider

2011 2010

16. Building improvement and equipment

(%)

250,000,000 250,000,000 12.25

2011

27,864,111

2010 2011 2010

27,864,111 9,646,875 7,656,250

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit : Baht)

Building Office Computer and . Building under

improvement  equipment equipment vehicle improvement Total
Cost
1 January 2010 15,490,572 7,739,105 72,202,130 7,405,000 - 102,836,807
Additions = 84,753 4,673,336 = = 4,758,089
Disposals = (34,143) (8,352,102) = = (8.386,245)
31 December 2010 15,490,572 7,789,715 68,523,364 7,405,000 - 99,208,651
Additions 211,525 365,690 6,707,932 = 875,000 8,160,147
Disposals = (11,600)  (4,598,959) - - (4,610,559)
31 December 2011 156,702,097 8,143,805 70,632,337 7,405,000 875,000 102,758,239
Accumulated depreciation:
1 January 2010 14,266,075 5,719,064 63,767,568 4,361,419 = 88,114,126
Depreciation for the year 393.236 687,135 6,392,328 1,474,941 = 8,947,640
Depreciation on disposals = (32,438)  (8,340,947) - - (8.373,385)
31 December 2010 14,659,311 6,373,761 61,818,949 5,836,360 = 88,688,381
Depreciation for the year 410,157 658,048 4,688,978 743,999 = 6,501,182
Depreciation on disposals - (11.598)  (4,598,797) - - (4,610,395)
31 December 2011 15,069,468 7,020,211 61,909,130 6,580,359 = 90,579,168
Net book value:
31 December 2010 831,261 1,415,954 6,704,415 1,568,640 = 10,520,270
31 December 2011 632,629 1,123,594 8,723,207 824,641 875,000 12,179,071
Depreciation for the year
2010 (6.4 included in services cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 8,947,640
2011 (4.6 included in services cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 6,501,182



Cost

1 January 2010

Additions

Disposals

31 December 2010
Additions

Disposals

31 December 2011
Accumulated depreciation:
1 January 2010
Depreciation for the year
Depreciation on disposals
31 December 2010
Depreciation for the year
Depreciation on disposals
31 December 2011

Net book value:

31 December 2010

31 December 2011

Depreciation for the year

15,490,572 7.717.305 72,202,130 7,405,000 - 102,815,007
= 84,753 4,673,336 = = 4,758,089

= (34,143) (8.352,102) = = (8.386.245)
15,490,572 7,767,915 68,523,364 7,405,000 = 99,186,851
= 118,480 5,836,262 = 875,000 6,829,742

= (11,600) (4,598,959) = = (4,610,559
15,490,572 7,874,795 69,760,667 7,405,000 875,000 101,406,034
14,266,075 5,703,476 63,767,568 4,361,419 = 88,098,538
393,236 682,776 6,392,328 1.474,941 = 8,943,281

= (32,438) (8.340.,947) = = (8.373,385)
14,659,311 6,353,814 61,818,949 5,836,360 = 88,668,434
393,236 646,342 4,617,680 743,999 = 6,401,257

= (11,598) (4,598,797) = = (4,610,395)
15,052,547 6,988,558 61,837,832 6,580,359 = 90,459,296
831,261 1.414,101 6,704,415 1,568,640 = 10,518,417
438,025 886,237 7,922,835 824,641 875,000 10,946,738
2010 (6.4 included in services cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 8,943,281
6,401,257

Separate financial statements

Building Office Computer and Vehicl Building under
ehicle
improvement  equipment equipment improvement

(Unit : Baht)

Total

2011 (4.6 included in services cost, and the balance in administrative expenses)

As at 31 December 2011, certain building improvement and equipment items have been fully depreciated

but are still in use. The gross carrying amount before deducting accumulated depreciation of those assets

amounted to approximately Baht 78.7 million (2010: Baht 72.9 million) (The Company only: Baht 78.7 million,

2010: Baht 72.9 million).
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17. Intangible assets

The net book value of intangible assets as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 is presented below.

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

Computer Software Computer Software
software under Total SRR under Total
development development

31 December 2011

Cost 43,918,080 4,932,058 48,850,138 43,878,480 2,124,279 46,002,759
Less Accumulated
amortisation (34,980,656) - (34.980.656) (34.978.778) - (34,978.778)
Net book value 8,937,424 4,932,058 13,869,482 8,899,702 2,124,279 11,023,981
31 December 2010
Cost 41,403,700 3,005,305 44,409,005 41,403,700 3,005,305 44,409,005

Less Accumulated
amortisation (31,442,031)

(31.442,031) (31,442,031) (31,442,031)

Net book value 9,961,669 3,005,305 12,966,974 9.961,669 3,005,305 12,966,974

A reconciliation of the net book value of intangible assets for the years 2011 and 2010 is presented below.

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements ~ Separate financial statements
2011 2010 2011 2010
Net book value at beginning of year 12,966,974 12,994,216 12,966,974 12,994,216
Acquisition of computer software 4,441,133 5,301,838 1.593.755 5,301,838
Amortisation (3.538.,625) (56,329,080) (3.536,748) (5.329,080)
Net book value at end of year 13,869,482 12,966,974 11,023,981 12,966,974

18. Trade and other payables

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements  Separate financial statements
2011 2010 2011 2010
Trade payables - related parties 25,141,991 6,656,623 25,133,517 6,656,623
Trade payables - unrelated parties 4,923,287 4,061,962 4,863,351 4,061,962
Accrued cost 16,761,401 8,665,205 16,761,401 8,665,205
Other payable 2,381,121 1,436,036 2,263,818 1,406,036

Total trade and other payables 49,207,800 20,819,826 49,022,087 20,789,826




19. Provision for long-term employee benefits
Provision for long-term employee benefits as at 31 December 2011, which is compensations on employees’

retirement, was as follows:
(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy for

employee benefits adjusted against beginning balance

of retained earnings (Note 5) 5,893,982 5,893,982
Current service cost 630,335 630,335
Inferest cost 241,652 241,652
Balance at end of year 6,765,969 6,765,969

Long-term employee benefit expenses included in the profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2011

amounted to Baht 0.87 million.

Principal actuarial assumptions at the valuation date were as follows:

Consolidated financial statements  Separate financial statements

2011 2010 2011 2010

(% per annum) (% per annum) (% per annum) (% per annum)

Discount rate 4.1% = 4.1% =
Future salary increase rate 5%-9% = 5%-9% =
(depending on age of employee)

Staff turnover rate 0%-25% = 0%-25% =

20. Share capital and warrants
On 31 August 2007, the Company issued 3.75 million warrants (ESOP) to subscribe the Company’s ordinary
shares. These warrants were allotted to the directors and/or employee, free of charge. These warrants are
exercisable every six months for a period of 5 years from the issue and offering date. The exercise ratio of

the warrant is 1:1 af the exercise price of Baht 7 per 1 ordinary share.

Later, the General Meetings of the Company’s shareholders passed a resolution approving continual revision
of the exercise price of the warrants each year. In 2011 the exercise price of the warrants is Baht 0.682 per

share, in accordance with the conditions stipulated in the warrant allotment plan.

During 2010, the Company registered its issued and paid-up share capital in respect of exercised warrants
which were issued to directors and/or employees for 81,990,000 shares. Consequently, the Company’s issued
and paid-up share capital increased from Baht 76.54 million to Baht 77.36 million and the share premium

increased from Baht 64.22 million to Baht 69.03 million.
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During 2011, the Company registered its issued and paid-up share capital in respect of exercised warrants
which were issued to directors and/or employees for 11,544,700 shares. Consequently, the Company’s issued
and paid-up share capital increased from Baht 77.36 million to Baht 78.51 million and the share premium
increased from Baht 69.03 million to Baht 75.75 million.

As at 31 December 2011, there are 2.41 million unexercised share warrants (2010: 13.95 million warrants).

21. Statutory reserve
Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside to a
statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net income affer deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until

the reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

22. Expenses by nature

Significant expenses by nature are as follows:

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2011 2010 2011 2010
Costs of database management system 84,282,892 73,445,305 84,275,357 73,445,305
Cost of projects 87,544,056 41,899,386 87,544,056 41,899,386
Salaries and wages and other employee 59,331,212 52,490,528 59,224,510 52,490,528
benefits
Directors’ remuneration and consultant fee 13,385,252 12,538,740 13,385,252 12,538,740
Depreciation 6,501,182 8,947,640 6,401,257 8,943,281
Amortisation expenses 3,638,625 5,330,666 3,536,748 5,330,666
Rental expenses from operating lease 8,450,885 7,369,009 8,450,885 7,369,009
agreements
Marketing expenses 7,240,856 7,633.212 7,240,856 7,633,212
Electricity charges 3,405,855 3,345,445 3,387,501 3,345,445

23. Corporate income tax
Corporate income tax for the year ended 31 December 2011 was calculated the rate of 25 and 30 per
cent (2010: 20 and 30 percent) on net income after adding back certain expenses which are disallowable

for fax computation purposes.

24. Earnings per share
Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year affributable to equity holders of the
Company (excluding other comprehensive income) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue during the year.

Diluted eamings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company (excluding other comprehensive income) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares which would need to be issued



fo convert all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The calculation assumes that the conversion

took place either af the beginning of the year or on the date the potential ordinary shares were issued.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted eamings per share:

Consolidated financial statements

Profit for the year Weighted average Earnings per share
number of
ordinary shares

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
(Thousand Baht) (Thousand Shares ) (Baht)

Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company 86,237 72,427 774,718 766,527 0.11 0.09

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
Warrants - ESOP : 2,405,300 units
(2010: 13,950,000 units) = = 6,151 7,104

Diluted earnings per share

Profit of ordinary shareholders
assuming the conversion of
warrants to ordinary shares 86,237 72,427 780,869 773,631 0.1 0.09

Separate financial statements

Profit for the year Weighted average Earnings per share
number of
ordinary shares

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
(Thousand Baht) (Thousand Shares ) (Baht)

Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company 86,222 72,357 774,718 766,527 0.11 0.09

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
Warrants - ESOP : 2,405,300 units
(2010: 13,950,000 units) - - 6,151 7.104

Diluted earnings per share

Profit of ordinary shareholders
assuming the conversion of
warrants to ordinary shares 86,222 72,357 780,869 773,631 0.11 0.09
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25. Financial information by segment

The Company operates its business in a single segment of business as an online and offline information service pro-
vider and developer of financial news and other information services, and carries on it business mostly in the single
geographic area in Thailand. As a result, all of the revenues, operating profits and assets as reflected in these financial
statements pertain fo the aforementioned business segment and geographic area. Overseas service income for the

year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to Baht 22.2 million. (2010: Baht 39.1 million)

26. Provident fund

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the Provident Fund
Act B.E. 2530. Both employees and the Company contribute to the fund monthly at the rate of 3 percent of basic
salary. The fund, which is managed by TISCO Finance Public Company Limited, will be paid to

employees upon fermination in accordance with the fund rules. During the year 2011, the Company contributed

Baht 1.0 million (2010: Baht 0.9 million) fo the fund.

27. Dividends
(Unit : Baht)
Dividends Approved by Total dividends  Dividend per share
Final dividends for 2009 Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 1 April 2010 34,440,795 0.05
Interim dlividends for 2010 Board of Directors’ meeting on
9 August 2010 30,655,900 0.04
Total paid in 2010 65,096,695 0.09
Final dividends for 2010 Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 5 April 2011 38,677,500 0.05
Interim dividends for 2011 Board of Directors’ meeting on
9 August 2011 30,972,400 0.04
Total paid in 2011 69,649,900 0.09

28. Commitments and contingent liabilities
28.1 Service agreements
The Company has entered info agreements with two government enterprises to obtain the right to
operafte an online business information service and nationwide online information on bankrupts and
auctions due to bankruptcy. In addition, the Company entered into service agreements related to cost
of providing services with other companies. As at 31 December 2011, the future payments under these

service agreements are due as follow:

Payable within:
Less than 1 year 25.83
1 to & years 69.38



282 Capital expenditure agreement
The Company has enfered info agreements for development of its computer system with two companies,

and has outstanding commitment of approximately Baht 2.82 million as at 31 December 2011.

28.3 License agreements

a) An agreement with a related company and an overseas company granting the Company for
the rights to utilize software applications to another related company. Under the agreement, the
Company is obliged to pay a fee at a certain percentage of revenues eamned from the use of
such service as stipulated in the agreement. The agreement does not stipulate a definite term.

b) An agreement with an overseas company sharing of such revenues from utilization of the analysis
system for customer payment information, Under the agreement, the Company is obliged to pay
a fee at a certain percentage of revenues earned from the use of such service as stipulated in

the agreement. The agreement does not stipulate a definite term.

28.4 Bank guarantees
As at 31 December 2011, there were oufstanding bank guarantees of Baht 17.89 million issued by a
bank on behalf of the Company in respect of certain performance bonds as required in the normal
course of business to guarantee confractual performance.

29. Financial instruments
29.1 Financial risk management
The Company’s financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No.107 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, frade accounts
receivable and investments. The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are
managed is described below.

Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect fo trade accounts receivable and other receivable.
The Company manages the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures and
therefore does not expect to incur material financial losses. In addition, the Company does not have high
concentrations of credit risk since it has a large customer base and the major customers are almost financial
institutes, state enterprises and government unit. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carying
amounts of receivables, other receivables and notes receivable as stated in the statement of financial
position.
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Interest rate risk
The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks. However, since most of
the Company’s financial assets and liabilities bear floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are

close to the market rate, the interest rate risk is expected to be minimal.

Significant financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2011 clossified by type of interest rate are summarised
in the table below, with those financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified

based on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurs before the maturity date.

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Fixed interest rates Floating  Non- Effective

Within 1-5 Over interest  interest Total interest
1 year years 5 years rate bearing rate

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalent - - - 59.34 - 50.34 0.75-3.60
. (% per annum)
Trade accounts receivable - - - - 72.89 72.89
Deposits at bank with restrictions 17.00 - - - - 17.00
17.00 = = 59.34 72.89 149.23

Financial liabilities

Trade accounts payable = = - - 49.20 49.20

(Unit: Million Baht)

Separate financial statements

Fixed interest rates Floating Non- Effective

Within 1-5 Over interest  interest Total interest
1 year years 5 years rate bearing rate

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalent - - - 58.22 - 5822  0.75-3.60
. (% per annum)
Trade accounts receivable = = = - 72.89 72.89
Deposits at bank with restrictions 17.00 - - - - 17.00
17.00 - = 58.22 72.89 148.11

Financial liabilities
Trade accounts payable = = = - 49.02 49.02

Foreign currency risk
The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from purchasing or rendering services transactions
that are denominated in foreign currencies. The Company has not entered into any contract in order to protect

such foreign currency risk.



30.

31.

32.

33.

As at 31 December 2011, the balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

are summarised below.

Exchange rate
Foreign currency Financial Assets Financial liabilities as at 31 December 2011

(Baht per 1 foreign
(Thousand) (Thousand) currency unit)

US dollar 148 210 31.6912

29.2 Fair values of financial instruments
Since the majority of the Company’s financial instruments are short-term in nature or bear floating
interest rates, their fair value is not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented in

statfements of financial position.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liabillity seftled between knowledgeable,
wiling parties in an arm’s length fransaction. The fair value is determined by reference fo the market
price of the financial instruments or by using an appropriate valuation technique, depending on the

nature of the instrument.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it has appropriate copital structure
in order to support ifs business and maximise shareholder value. As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s
debt-to-equity ratio was 0.54:1 (2010: 0.40:1) and the Company’s was 0.54:1 (2010: 0.40:1).

Events after the reporting period

On 20 February 2012, the Board of Director Meeting of the Company passed a resolution to proposed for
approval additional payment of dividend at a rate of Baht 0.05 per share form the net profit of 2011,
totaling of Baht 39.25 million.

The payment of dividend will later be proposed for approval in the Annual General Meeting of the Company’s

shareholders.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010 have been reclassified
fo conform to the current year's classification, following the adoption of presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the stipulations of the Nofification of the Department of Business Development described
in Note 2, and the adoption of new and revised accounting standards described in Note 3 and Note 5.

The reclassifications had no effect to previously reported profit or shareholder’s equity.

Approval of financial statements

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 20 February 2012.
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